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Unmodified Opinion

Financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Report of Independent Auditors



Statements of Net Position
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Operations
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• AU-C Section 260 – The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with 
Governance

• Significant accounting policies

• Accounting estimates are reasonable

• No audit adjustments

• No issues discussed prior to our retention as auditors

• No disagreements with management

• No awareness of material instances of fraud or noncompliance with laws and 
regulations

Important Board Communications
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Questions?
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Communication with the Governing Board 

To the Governing Board 
Santa Clara County Health Authority 
(dba Santa Clara Family Health Plan) 

We have audited the financial statements of Santa Clara County Health Authority (dba Santa Clara 
Family Health Plan) (“Health Authority”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and have issued 
our report thereon dated October XX, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with 
the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of 
America 

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 27, 2021, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by 
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 

Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, and to design the audit to obtain reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An 
audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Health Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we considered the Health Authority’s internal control solely for the purposes of 
determining our audit procedures and not to provide assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the financial statement audit 
that, in our professional judgment, are relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial 
reporting process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying 
other matters to communicate to you. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
management, who has been charged by the Governing Board to oversee the audit, during our pre-
audit planning meeting on May 20, 2021. 
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Significant Audit Findings and Issues 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the Health Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
During the year, management adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) 
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, and GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, 
and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plans – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of 
GASB Statement No. 32. No other new accounting policies were adopted and there were no changes 
in the application of existing policies during 2021. We noted no transactions entered into by the Health 
Authority during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no 
significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than 
when the transaction occurred. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them 
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial 
statements were: 

 Management recorded an estimated capitation receivable. The estimated capitation receivable 
for eligible Medi-Cal program beneficiaries is based upon a historical experience methodology. 
We have gained an understanding of management’s estimate methodology, and have 
examined the documentation supporting these methodologies and formulas. We found 
management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 Management’s estimate of the fair values of investments in the absence of readily-
determinable fair values is based on information provided by the fund managers. We have 
gained an understanding of management’s estimate methodology and examined the 
documentation supporting this methodology. We found management’s process to be 
reasonable. 

 Management recorded an estimated liability for incurred but unpaid claims expense. The 
estimated liability for unpaid claims is based on management’s estimate of historical claims 
experience and known activity subsequent to year-end. We have gained an understanding of 
management’s estimate methodology, and have examined the documentation supporting 
these methodologies and formulas. We found management’s basis to be reasonable in relation 
to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 Management’s estimate of the net pension asset is actuarially determined using assumptions 
on the long-term rate of return on pension plan assets, the discount rate used to determine the 
present value of benefit obligations, and the rate of compensation increases. These 
assumptions are provided by management. We have evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimate. We found management’s basis to be reasonable 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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 Management’s estimate of net other post-employment benefit (“OPEB”) liability is actuarially 
determined using assumptions on the long-term rate of return on OPEB plan assets, the 
discount rate used to determine the present value of benefit obligations, and changes in 
healthcare costs. These assumptions are provided by management. We have evaluated the 
key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate. We found management’s basis to 
be reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 Management recorded an estimated liability for premium deficiency reserve. The estimated 
liability is based on management’s analyses of its expected future medical expenses and 
maintenance costs to determine whether such costs will exceed anticipated future revenues 
under its contracts. We have gained an understanding of management’s estimate 
methodology, and have examined the documentation supporting these methodologies and 
formulas. We found management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

 The useful lives of capital assets have been estimated based on the intended use and are 
within accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We found 
management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

The disclosures in the financial statements are consistent, clear, and understandable. Certain financial 
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the Health Authority’s financial statements relate to 
medical claims payable, net pension, other-post employment benefit liability, and capitation and 
premium revenues. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing 
our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all factual and judgmental misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. There were no corrected and uncorrected misstatements whose effects, as determined 
by management, are material, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a 
whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could 
be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October XX, 2021. 
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Management Consultation with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Health Authority’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other 
accountants. 

Independence 

We are required to disclose to those charged with governance, in writing, all relationships between the 
auditors and the Health Authority that in the auditor's professional judgment, may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence. We know of no such relationships and confirm that, in our 
professional judgment, we are independent of the Health Authority within the meaning of professional 
standards. 

Other Significant Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Health Authority’s auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our 
responses were not a condition to our retention. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Governing Board of Santa Clara County Health 
Authority (dba Santa Clara Family Health Plan) and its management, and is not intended to be, and 
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

 

San Francisco, California  
October XX, 2021 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019 

INTRODUCTION: 

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Section 2200, Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report, the management of the Santa Clara County Health Authority (dba Santa Clara 
Family Health Plan) (“Health Authority”) has prepared this discussion and analysis to provide readers and 
interested parties with an overview of the organizations’ financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2021, 2020, and 2019. This discussion should be reviewed in conjunction with the Health Authority’s financial 
statements and accompanying notes to enhance the reader’s understanding of the Health Authority’s financial 
performance. 

ORGANIZATION: 

Santa Clara County Health Authority is a licensed health maintenance organization that operates in Santa Clara 
County (the “County”). The County’s Board of Supervisors established Santa Clara County Health Authority in 
August 1995, in accordance with the State of California Welfare and Institutions Code (the “Code”) 
Section 14087.38. During 1996, the Health Authority obtained licensure under the Knox-Keene Health Care 
Services Plan Act of 1975 and commenced operations. 

The Santa Clara Community Health Authority Joint Powers Authority (“JPA”) is a licensed health maintenance 
organization that operated in the County. The County’s Board of Supervisors established the JPA in 
October 2005, in accordance with the Code Section 14087.54. During 2006, the JPA obtained licensure under the 
Knox-Keene Health Care Services Plan Act of 1975 and commenced operations. The Health Authority has 
advised the California Department of Managed HealthCare (“DMHC”) of its intent to surrender the JPA’s license 
as of December 31, 2019, and the JPA ceased to exist on December 31, 2019. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The Health Authority’s annual financial report consists of three statements – Statements of Net Position; 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and Statements of Cash Flows and 
accompanying notes. The statements report the following financial information: 

 The Statements of Net Position present the Health Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. 

 The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present the results of operations 
during the fiscal years and the resulting changes in net position. 

 The Statements of Cash Flows identify sources and uses of cash from operating activities, capital and 
financing activities, and investing activities. 
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The following discussion and analysis addresses the Health Authority’s overall program activities. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 

 Total enrollment increased 11.3% to 282,670 members at June 30, 2021, from 253,875 members at 
June 30, 2020. Total enrollment increased 1.9% to 253,875 members at June 30, 2020, from 249,206 
members at June 30, 2019. 

 Net position increased by $46,209,816 to $254,850,602 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, from 
$208,640,786 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, due to operating income of $43,357,542 and 
nonoperating income of $2,852,274. Net position increased by $6,515,031 to $208,640,786 for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020, from $202,125,755 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, due to operating 
income of $38,958 and nonoperating income of $6,476,073. 

 Total assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased to $963,677,770 as of June 30, 2021, from 
$1,189,881,233 as of June 30, 2020. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased to 
$1,189,881,233 as of June 30, 2020, from $1,009,258,566 as of June 30, 2019. 

 Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased to $708,827,168 at June 30, 2021, from 
$981,240,447 at June 30, 2020. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased to 
$981,240,447 at June 30, 2020, from $897,132,811 at June 30, 2019. 

 The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of 1.31 as of June 30, 2021, reflected an 
increase from 1.18 as of June 30, 2020. The current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of 
1.18 as of June 30, 2020, reflected a decrease from 1.19 at June 30, 2019. 
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION: 

2021 2020 2019 Amount % Change Amount % Change

Assets:
Current assets 926,495,698$    1,152,476,888$     1,060,344,723$     (225,981,190)$     -19.6% 92,132,165$      8.7%
Capital assets 27,056,663        26,649,088            27,392,240            407,575               1.5% (743,152)            -2.7%
Other assets 2,712,052          2,352,997              2,283,994              359,055               15.3% 69,003                3.0%

Total assets 956,264,413      1,181,478,973       1,090,020,957       (225,214,560)       -19.1% 91,458,016        8.4%

Deferred outflows of resources 7,413,357          8,402,260              9,237,609              (988,903)              -11.8% (835,349)            -9.0%

Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources 963,677,770$    1,189,881,233$     1,099,258,566$     (226,203,463)$     -19.0% 90,622,667$      8.2%

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 706,350,909$    977,464,723$        891,447,827$        (271,113,814)$     -27.7% 86,016,896$      9.6%
Noncurrent liabilities 199,654              -                             2,539,090              199,654               100.0% (2,539,090)         -100.0%

Total liabilities 706,550,563      977,464,723          893,986,917          (270,914,160)       -27.7% 83,477,806        9.3%
  

Deferred inflow of resources 2,276,605          3,775,724              3,145,894              (1,499,119)           -39.7% 629,830              20.0%

Net position:
 Net investment in capital assets 27,056,663        26,649,088            27,392,240            407,575               1.5% (743,152)            -2.7%

Restricted 325,000              305,350                 305,350                 19,650.0              6.4% -                     0.0%
Unrestricted:

Designated by Governing Board 17,067,275        17,339,275            2,200,000              (272,000)              -1.6% 15,139,275        100.0%
Unrestricted 210,401,664      164,347,073          172,228,165          46,054,591          28.0% (7,881,092)         -4.6%

 Total net position 254,850,602      208,640,786          202,125,755          46,209,816          22.1% 6,515,031          3.2%

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, and net position 963,677,770$    1,189,881,233$     1,099,258,566$     (226,203,463)$     -19.0% 90,622,667$      8.2%

2020 to 2019
June 30 Change

2021 to 2020
Change

 
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, assets decreased $225,214,560 or -19.1% due primarily to decreases in 
hospital pass-through receivables. During the same period, deferred outflows of resources decreased $988,903 
or -11.8% due to the timing of amounts attributable to employee retirement plans. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, assets increased $91,458,016 or 8.4% due primarily to increases in 
receivables from the California Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”). During the same period, deferred 
outflows of resources decreased $835,349 or -9.0% due to the timing of amounts attributable to employee 
retirement plans. 

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, liabilities decreased $270,914,160 or -27.7% due primarily to decreases 
in hospital pass-through payables. During the same period, deferred inflows of resources decreased $1,499,119 
or -39.7% due to the timing of amounts attributable to employee retirement plans. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, liabilities increased $83,477,806 or 9.3% due primarily to increases in 
timing of payables to DHCS and certain providers. During the same period, deferred inflows of resources 
increased $629,830 or 20.0% due to the timing of amounts attributable to employee retirement plans. 
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Tangible Net Equity 

The Health Authority is required to maintain a minimum level of tangible net equity (“TNE”) per its contract with 
DHCS. TNE is defined as the excess of total assets over total liabilities, excluding subordinated liabilities and 
intangible assets, if any. The Health Authority’s TNE was $254,850,602, $208,640,786, and $202,125,755 at 
June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. The Health Authority exceeded the minimum required TNE levels at 
all times during the three fiscal years. 

CONDENSED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS: 

2021 2020 2019 Amount % Change Amount % Change

Year end membership:
Medi-Cal 272,590                 244,888                 237,698 27,702                   11.3%  7,190                     3.0%
Cal Medi-Connect 10,080                   8,987                     8,022 1,093                     12.2% 965                        12.0%
Healthy Kids -                        -                        3,486 -                        0.0% (3,486)                   -100.0%

Total year end membership 282,670                 253,875                 249,206                 28,795                   11.3%  4,669                     1.9%

Annual member months:
Medi-Cal 3,137,271              2,829,690              2,904,840              307,581                 10.9%  (75,150)                 -2.6%
Cal Medi-Connect 116,365                 101,391                 92,838 14,974                   14.8% 8,553                     9.2%
Healthy Kids -                        10,528                   40,083 (10,528)                 -100.0% (29,555)                 -73.7%

Total annual member months 3,253,636              2,941,609              3,037,761              312,027                 10.6%  (96,152)                 -3.2%

Operating revenues:
Capitation and premium revenue 1,440,333,331$     1,147,826,608$     1,161,897,093$     292,506,723$        25.5%  (14,070,485)$         -1.2%

Total operating revenues 1,440,333,331       1,147,826,608       1,161,897,093       292,506,723          25.5% (14,070,485)           -1.2%

Operating expenses:
Medical expenses 1,162,912,637       1,036,714,518       979,947,150          126,198,119          12.2% 56,767,368            5.8%
General and

administrative expenses 60,991,517            57,442,133            54,419,879            3,549,384              6.2% 3,022,254              5.6%
Depreciation and amortization 3,729,409              3,370,268              3,816,251              359,141                 10.7% (445,983)                -11.7%
Premium tax 169,342,226          50,260,731            105,415,550          119,081,495          236.9% (55,154,819)           -52.3%

Total operating expenses 1,396,975,789        1,147,787,650        1,143,598,830       249,188,139          21.7% 4,188,820              0.4%

Operating income 43,357,542            38,958                   18,298,263            43,318,584            111193.0% (18,259,305)           -99.8%

Nonoperating revenues:
Interest and other income 2,852,274              6,476,073              5,811,627              (3,623,799)             -56.0% 664,446                 11.4%

Changes in net position 46,209,816            6,515,031              24,109,890            39,694,785            609.3% (17,594,859)           -73.0%

Net position, beginning of year 208,640,786          202,125,755          178,015,865          6,515,031              3.2% 24,109,890            13.5%

Net position, end of year 254,850,602$        208,640,786$        202,125,755$        46,209,816$          22.1% 6,515,031$            3.2%

2020 to 2019 2019 to 2018
Fiscal Year Change Change

Membership and Enrollment 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Health Authority experienced an increase in enrollment of 11.3% 
predominately due to the County’s suspension of Medi-Cal disenrollment during the COVID-19 public health 
emergency. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Health Authority experienced an increase in enrollment of 1.9% 
predominately due to the County’s suspension of Medi-Cal disenrollment during the COVID-19 public health 
emergency. 
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Operating Revenue 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, operating revenues increased by $292,506,723 or 25.5% to 
$1,440,333,331 versus the prior year operating revenue of $1,147,826,608. Much of the increase was attributable 
to changes in enrollment and capitation rates. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, operating revenues decreased by $14,070,485 or -1.2% to 
$1,147,826,608 versus the prior year operating revenue of $1,161,897,093. Much of the decrease was 
attributable to changes in enrollment and capitation rates. 

Medical Expenses 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, medical expenses increased by $126,198,119 or 12.2% to 
$1,162,912,637 versus the prior year of $1,036,714,518. Much of the increase was attributable to increases in 
certain capitation and fee-for-service expenses. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, medical expenses increased by $56,767,368 or 5.8% to 
$1,036,714,518 versus the prior year of $979,947,150. Much of the increase was attributable to certain increases 
in capitation and fee-for-service expenses. 

The Health Authority’s medical loss ratio (“MLR”), or medical expenses as a percentage of capitation and 
premium revenue (less contra-revenue premium tax), was 91.4%, 94.5%, and 92.8% for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. 

Premium Deficiency Reserve 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, management maintained its estimated premium deficiency reserve 
(“PDR”) on the CMC contract at $8,294,025 for fiscal year 2022 due to continued uncertainties and past 
reconciliations. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, management maintained its estimated premium deficiency reserve 
(“PDR”) on the CMC contract at $8,294,025 for fiscal year 2021 due to continuing uncertainties about final rate 
recasts for multiple fiscal years, shared risk corridor payments and hierarchical condition category ("HCC") risk 
adjustments, for which management cannot fully quantify the likelihood of these impacts. 

General and Administrative Expenses 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, general and administrative expenses increased by $3,549,384 or 
6.2% to $60,991,517 versus the prior year expense of $57,442,133 due to increased employee headcount and 
associated benefit costs. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, general and administrative expenses increased by $3,022,254 or 
5.6% to $57,442,133 versus the prior year expense of $54,419,879 due to increased staffing and increases in 
other expenses. 
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The Health Authority’s administrative loss ratio (“ALR”), or general and administrative (including depreciation and 
amortization expense) as a percentage of capitation and premium revenue (including contra-revenue premium 
tax), was 5.1%, 5.5%, and 5.5% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, respectively. 

CONDENSED CASH-FLOW INFORMATION: 

The table below summarizes the major sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents for the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019: 
 

2021 2020 2019 Amount % Change Amount % Change

Cash flows from operating activities 75,810,997$      30,675,986$      75,870,490$      45,135,011$      147.1% (45,194,504)$     -59.6%
Cash flows from capital and financing activities (4,350,663)         (2,826,838)         (6,415,822)         (1,523,825)         53.9% 3,588,984          -55.9%
Cash flows from investing activities (12,569,800)       (193,195,538)     5,811,627          180,625,738      -93.5% (199,007,165)     -3424.3%

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 58,890,534        (165,346,390)     75,266,295        224,236,924      -135.6% (240,612,685)     -319.7%
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 133,770,764      299,117,154      223,850,859      (165,346,390)     -55.3% 75,266,295        33.6%

 Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 192,661,298$    133,770,764$    299,117,154$    58,890,534$      44.0% (165,346,390)$   -55.3%

2021 to 2020 2020 to 2019
Fiscal Year Change Change

The Health Authority considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and 
cash equivalents. The Health Authority invests excess cash in the Santa Clara County Investment Pool, which 
can be withdrawn on demand. 

CONDENSED CAPITAL ASSET INFORMATION: 

The table below summarizes the major changes in capital assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, 
and 2019. Capital assets largely included furniture and fixtures, computer hardware and software, and leasehold 
improvements: 
 

2021 2020 2019 Amount % Change Amount % Change

Beginning balance, net 26,649,088$      27,392,240$      24,269,369$      (743,152)$          -2.7% 3,122,871$        12.9%
Additions 4,583,540          2,826,838          6,941,405          1,756,702          62.1% (4,114,567)         -59.3%
Reductions/adjustments (446,556)            (199,722)            (2,283)                (246,834)            123.6% (197,439)            8648.2%
Depreciation and amortization expense (3,729,409)         (3,370,268)         (3,816,251)         (359,141)            10.7% 445,983              -11.7%

Ending balance, net 27,056,663$      26,649,088$      27,392,240$      407,575$           1.5% (743,152)$          -2.7%

2021 to 2020 2020 to 2019
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Change Change

 

KEY FACTORS INFLUENCING THE FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 BUDGET: 

o COVID-19 Impact – The declaration of a Public Health Emergency by the State of California paused the 
normal Medi-Cal disenrollment process. The Plan saw a significant increase in enrollment for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020. Following the conclusion of the public health emergency, 
the Plan anticipates that Medi-Cal disenrollment process resumes. 
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o CalAIM – The State of California launched a multi-year initiative entitled California Advancing and 
Innovative Medi-Cal (“CalAIM”) to improve health outcomes for the Medi-Cal population by implementing 
a multi-year program of broad reforms to the delivery systems, programs, and payment reforms. The 
initial components of CalAIM are scheduled to launch January 1, 2022. CalAIM is expected to provide 
new funding to the Plan and increased expenses, the magnitude of which are unknown at this time. 

In June 2021, the Health Authority’s Governing Board formally approved operating and capital budgets for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The fiscal year 2022 operating budget anticipates enrollment growth of 11.3%, 
carve-out of pharmacy from Medi-Cal for the second half of the fiscal year, introduction of Enhanced Care 
Management (“ECM”) in January 2022, modest changes in capitation rates, and modest growth in operating 
expenses.  

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Health Authority’s finances for interested 
parties. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information 
should be addressed to Santa Clara Family Health Plan, Attn: Controller, 6201 San Ignacio Avenue, San Jose, 
California 95119 or call (408) 376-2000. 

FIN
AL D

RAFT



8 

Report of Independent Auditors 

To the Governing Board 
Santa Clara County Health Authority 
(dba Santa Clara Family Health Plan) 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Santa Clara County Health Authority (dba 
Santa Clara Family Health Plan) (“Health Authority”), which comprise the statements of net position 
as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131.2, State Controller’s 
Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatements. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
net position of the Santa Clara County Health Authority (dba Santa Clara Family Health Plan) as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the results in its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

The accompanying Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 1 through 6, supplementary 
schedule of proportionate share of the net pension asset/liability, supplementary schedule of pension 
contributions, supplementary schedules of changes in net other post-employment benefit liability, and 
supplementary schedule of other post-employment benefit contributions on pages 39 through 42 are 
not a required part of the financial statements but are supplementary information required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers them to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the Health Authority’s management. 
We have applied certain limited procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
response to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audits of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide an assurance on the 
supplementary information because limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

San Francisco, California 
October XX, 2021 
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Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020

Current assets
  Cash and cash equivalents 192,661,298$       133,770,764$     
  Investments 215,085,767         199,883,355       
  Premiums receivable 512,219,526         811,006,716
  Prepaids and other assets 6,529,107             7,816,053

Total current assets 926,495,698         1,152,476,888    

Capital assets, net
Nondepreciable 3,509,128             4,074,349           
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 23,547,535           22,574,739         

Total capital assets, net 27,056,663           26,649,088         

Assets restricted as to use 325,000                305,350              
Net pension asset -                        1,017,002           
Other post-employment benefits asset 2,387,052             1,030,645           

Total assets 956,264,413         1,181,478,973    

Deferred outflows of resources 7,413,357             8,402,260           

Total deferred outflows of resources 7,413,357             8,402,260           

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 963,677,770$       1,189,881,233$  

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11,886,885$         13,010,770$       
Amounts due to the State of California 90,485,269           104,429,798       
In-home supportive services payable 419,990,933         419,268,582       
Due to providers 68,106,473           345,356,397       
Medical incurred but not reported claims and medical claims payable 100,087,324         84,105,151         
Provider incentives and other medical liabilities 7,500,000             3,000,000           
Premium deficiency reserves 8,294,025             8,294,025           

Total current liabilities 706,350,909         977,464,723       

Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability 199,654                -                      

Total liabilities 706,550,563         977,464,723       

Deferred inflows of resources 2,276,605             3,775,724           

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,276,605             3,775,724           

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 27,056,663           26,649,088         
Restricted 325,000                305,350              
Unrestricted:

Designated by Governing Board 17,067,275           17,339,275         
Unrestricted 210,401,664         164,347,073       

Total net position 254,850,602         208,640,786       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 963,677,770$       1,189,881,233$  

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020
Operating revenues

Capitation and premium revenue 1,440,333,331$  1,147,826,608$  

Total operating revenues 1,440,333,331    1,147,826,608    

Operating expenses
Medical expenses 1,162,912,637    1,036,714,518    
Premium tax 169,342,226       50,260,731         
General and administrative expenses 60,991,517         57,442,133         
Depreciation and amortization 3,729,409           3,370,268           

Total operating expenses 1,396,975,789    1,147,787,650    

Operating income 43,357,542         38,958                

Nonoperating revenues
Interest and other income 2,852,274           6,476,073           

Change in net position 46,209,816         6,515,031           

Net position, beginning of year 208,640,786       202,125,755       

Net position, end of year 254,850,602$     208,640,786$     
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Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities

Capitation and premiums received 1,739,120,521$  1,087,886,018$  
Medical expenses paid (1,602,264,442)   (1,004,597,624)   
Marketing, general, and administrative expenses paid (61,045,082)        (52,612,408)        

Net cash provided by operating activities 75,810,997          30,675,986          

Cash flows from capital and financing activities
Purchases of capital assets (4,350,663)          (2,826,838)          

Net cash used in capital and financing activities (4,350,663)          (2,826,838)          

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (693,316,965)      (311,427,165)      
Sale of investments 677,894,891        111,755,554        
Interest collection on investments 2,852,274            6,476,073            

Net cash used in investing activities (12,569,800)        (193,195,538)      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 58,890,534          (165,346,390)      

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 133,770,764        299,117,154        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 192,661,298$      133,770,764$      

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities

Operating income 43,357,542$        38,958$               

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 3,729,409            3,370,268            
Net unrealized loss (gain) on investments 219,662               (211,744)             
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Premiums receivable 298,787,190        (59,940,590)        
Prepaids and other assets 1,267,296            2,345,390            
Net pension asset/liability 1,216,656            961,642               
Other post-employment benefits asset (1,356,407)          (3,569,735)          
Deferred outflows of resources 988,903               835,349               
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (910,206)             3,838,993            
Amounts due to the State of California (13,944,529)        51,286,710          
In-home supportive services payable 722,351               3,176,056            
Due to providers (277,249,924)      28,664,725          
Medical incurred but not reported claims and medical

claims payable 15,982,173          1,750,134            
Provider incentives and other medical liabilities 4,500,000            (2,500,000)          
Deferred inflows of resources (1,499,119)          629,830               

   
Net cash provided by operating activities 75,810,997$        30,675,986$        

Supplemental cash-flow disclosure
Cash paid during the year for premium tax 82,038,521$        26,353,887$        

 
Supplemental disclosure of noncash item

Payables for capital asset purchases 232,877$             257,855$             
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Notes to Financial Statements 
 

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

History and organization – The Santa Clara County Health Authority (dba Santa Clara Family Health Plan 
(“Health Authority”) was established on August 1, 1995, by the Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors pursuant to 
Section 14087.38 of the State of California Welfare and Institutions Code (the “Code”). SCFHP was created for the 
purpose of developing the Local Initiative Plan (the “Plan”) for the expansion of Medi-Cal Managed Care, as 
presently regulated by the California Department of Managed Health Care (“DMHC”). The Medi-Cal Managed Care 
Program offers no-cost health coverage to children, birth through age 18, pregnant women, and other low-income 
adults in Santa Clara County (the “County”). During 1996, SCFHP obtained licensure under the Knox-Keene Health 
Care Service Plan Act of 1975 and commenced operations. The financial statements are included in the County of 
Santa Clara’s basic financial statements as a discretely presented component unit. 

The Santa Clara Community Health Authority Joint Powers Authority (“JPA”) is a licensed health maintenance 
organization that operates in the County. The County's Board of Supervisors established the JPA in 
October 2005, in accordance with the Code Section 14087.54. The JPA received its Knox-Keene license on 
May 11, 2006, and commenced operations on June 1, 2006. The Health Authority advised the DMHC of its intent 
to surrender the JPA’s license as of December 31, 2019, and the JPA ceased to exist on December 31, 2019. 

The following table presents certain combined financial statement captions as previously reported which 
combines the JPA with the Health Authority, and compares them to the current presentation which does not 
combine the JPA with the Health Authority as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020: 

Health Authority 
with JPA

Health Authority 
without  JPA  Difference 

Total operating revenues 1,147,826,608$ 1,147,826,608$ -$                   
Total operating expenses 1,147,787,650$ 1,147,787,650$ -$                   
Change in net position 6,515,031$        6,515,031$        -$                   

The Health Authority has contracted with the California Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) to receive 
funding to provide health care services to the Medi-Cal eligible County residents who are enrolled as members of 
the Health Authority (“DHCS contract”). The DHCS contract specifies capitation rates, which may be adjusted 
annually. DHCS revenue is paid monthly and is based upon contracted rates, and actual Medi-Cal enrollment. The 
Health Authority, in turn, has contracted with hospitals and physicians whereby capitation payments (agreed-upon 
monthly payments per member) and fee-for-service payments are made in return for contracted health care services 
for its members. Provider contracts are typically evergreen and contain annual rate change provisions, termination 
clauses, and risk-sharing provisions. 

The Health Authority contracts with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) and the DHCS, 
effective January 1, 2015, to participate in Cal MediConnect (“CMC”), a demonstration project to integrate care for 
dual-eligible beneficiaries. Cal MediConnect is part of California's larger demonstration plan known as the 
Coordinated Care Initiative (“CCI”), which transforms the delivery of health care for seniors and people with 
disabilities. It integrates dual eligibles' care across all their entitlement benefits from Medicare, Medi-Cal, and 
other supportive services. 
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The Health Authority operates a Healthy Kids program to provide medical coverage to children of parents not 
otherwise eligible for the Medi-Cal program. All Health Kids members transitioned to Medi-Cal by December 31, 
2019. 

On March 1, 2016, SB X2-2 established a Managed Care Organization (“MCO”) provider tax for July 1, 2016, 
through June 30, 2019, and administered by DHCS. The tax is assessed on by DHCS on licensed health plans 
contracted to provide Medi-Cal services. The legislation established taxing tiers and per-enrollee amounts for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2017, 2018, and 2019. On September 27, 2019, Assembly Bill 115 (Chapter 348, 
Statutes 2019) authorized DHCS to implement a modified MCO tax model on specified health plans, which was 
approved by the federal Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services on April 3, 2020. The effective date range for 
this approval is January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022. The Health Authority paid $82,038,521 and $0 in 
MCO premium taxes during fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Health 
Authority had payables due in the amount of $31,975,622 and $48,615,420, respectively, included in amounts due 
to the State of California. 

Basis of accounting – The Health Authority is a governmental health insuring organization and, accordingly, 
follows principles, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), the provisions of 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Audit and Accounting Guide (“AICPA”), Health Care 
Organizations, and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131, State Controller’s Minimum Audit 
Requirements for California Special Districts and the State Controller’s Office prescribed reporting guidelines. The 
Health Authority utilizes the proprietary fund method of accounting under which the financial statements are 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized when incurred. 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in 
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, the Health Authority’s proprietary fund accounting 
and financial reporting practices are based on all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as codified 
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989. 

Use of estimates – The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Medical incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims and medical claims payable, 
premiums receivable, fair market value of investments, net pension asset/liability, other post-employment benefits 
asset, premium deficiency reserves, and useful lives of capital assets represent significant estimates. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and cash equivalents – The Health Authority considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three 
months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost, which 
approximates fair value. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Health Authority’s cash deposits and investment pool had 
carrying amounts of $192,661,298 and $133,770,764, respectively. The Health Authority’s bank and investment pool 
balances at June 30, 2021 and 2020, including interests in an investment pool, were $223,433,288 and 
$344,500,631, respectively. Of the bank and investment pool balances at June 30, 2021 and 2020, $222,563,094 
and $343,653,375, respectively, were not covered by federal depository insurance. 
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Amounts invested in the County Treasurer’s investment pool (the “Investment Pool”) are considered cash and 
cash equivalents, as funds can be withdrawn by the Health Authority on demand. The County’s Investment 
Oversight Committee Board has oversight responsibility for the Investment Pool. The Investment Pool is not U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission registered, and based on the California statutes and the County’s 
investment policy, primarily invests in obligations of U.S. Treasury, certain federal agencies, bankers’ 
acceptances, commercial papers, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and California State Treasurer’s 
Local Agency Investment Fund. The amounts invested in the Investment Pool are considered investments in an 
external investment pool and earn interest based on the blended rate of return earned by the entire portfolio in the 
pool. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 
between willing parties, other than in forced liquidation. The fair value of the Investment Pool is generally based 
on published market prices and quotations from major investment firms. As the Health Authority does not own 
identifiable investment securities of the pool but participates as a shareholder of the pool, these cash and cash 
equivalents are not individually identifiable and were not required to be categorized under GASB Codification 
Section C20, Cash Deposits with Financial Institutions, Section 150, Investments and Section 155, Investments – 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements. The fair value of the Health Authority’s share in the pool approximated the fair 
value of the position in the pool at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Investments – The Health Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application 
(“GASB 72”), effective July 1, 2019. GASB 72 requires the Health Authority to use valuation techniques which are 
appropriate under the circumstances and are consistent with the market approach, the cost approach, or the 
income approach. GASB 72 establishes a hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value consisting of three 
levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are inputs 
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. 

Capital assets – Purchased capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is provided using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally three to five years. 
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease or the useful life. The 
Health Authority capitalizes capital expenditures over $1,000, which will have a useful life of three or more years. 

The Health Authority evaluates prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to 
determine whether impairment of a capital asset has occurred. Impairment losses on capital assets are measured 
using the method that best reflects the diminished service utility of the capital asset. 

Assets restricted as to use – The Health Authority is required by DMHC to restrict cash having a fair value of at 
least $300,000 for payment of member claims in the event of insolvency. The amount recorded was $325,000 and 
$305,350 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

Amounts due to the State of California – When the Health Authority is made aware of changes to DHCS rate 
structure, such as rate changes, risk corridors or program reconciliations, that significantly impact the financial 
outlook, an accrual for the estimated change is recorded. 
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In-Home Supportive Services (“IHSS”) payable – DHCS paid IHSS payments directly to the Santa Clara 
County's Department of Social Services. As part of CCI, the Health Authority assumed full risk for IHSS provider 
payments. These amounts are included in both premium revenue and medical expenses and equivalent amounts 
are recorded as premiums receivable and IHSS payable, respectively, in the Health Authority’s financials 
statements. Additionally, the Health Authority paid the MCO tax on the IHSS revenue and recorded it as premium 
tax. Effective January 1, 2018, IHSS was phased-out of CCI. 

Due to providers – Due to providers consists predominately of payables related to managed care hospital 
directed payments, Proposition 56 funds, and Ground Emergency Medical Transportation (“GEMT”) funds. 

Effective July 1, 2017, DHCS implemented three Medi-Cal managed care hospital directed payments: (1) Private 
Hospital Directed Payment (“PHDP”), (2) Designated Public Hospital Enhanced Payment Program (“EPP”), and 
(3) Designated Public Hospital Quality Incentive Pool (“QIP”). 

 For PHDP, the Department has directed Managed Care Plans (“MCP”) to reimburse private hospitals as 
defined in WIC 14169.51, based on actual utilization of contracted services. The enhanced payment is 
contingent upon hospitals providing adequate access to service, including primary, specialty, and 
inpatient care. 

 For EPP, which consists of fee-for-service and capitated pools, the Department has directed MCPs to 
reimburse California’s designated public hospitals (“DPH”) for contracted services based on actual 
utilization of contracted services. 

 For QIP, the Department has directed MCPs to make additional payments tied to performance on 
designated performance metrics in four strategic categories: primary care, specialty care, inpatient care, 
and resource utilization. 

Proposition 56 is a supplemental payment for certain professional medical services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries 
funded by the Tobacco Tax (California Healthcare, Research, and Prevention Tobacco Tax Act (Proposition 56) 
as defined by DHCS in APL 19-006. 

GEMT is a supplemental payment that provides additional funding to eligible providers of GEMT services to Medi-
Cal beneficiaries as defined by DHCS in APL 19-007. 

Medical incurred but not reported claims and medical claims payable – The Health Authority contracts with 
various providers, including physicians and hospitals, to provide certain health care products and services to 
enrolled beneficiaries. The cost of the health care products and services provided or contracted for is accrued in the 
period in which it is provided to a member, based in part on actuarial estimates, including an accrual for medical 
services incurred but not yet reported to the Health Authority. Estimates are monitored and reviewed and, as 
settlements are made or estimates adjusted, differences are reflected in current operations. Such estimates are 
subject to the impact of changes in the regulatory environment and economic conditions. 
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Provider incentives and other medical liabilities – The Health Authority has various incentive agreements with 
certain providers whereby the providers are reimbursed for efficient and quality services provided to certain 
enrolled beneficiaries. Under the incentive agreements, health care costs (which include all fee-for-service claims 
and estimated medical incurred but not reported claims and medical claims payable) are allocated on a per 
member per month basis. Based on the terms of certain incentive agreements, a final reconciliation of surpluses 
is completed annually and paid within six months of the end of the Health Authority's fiscal year. Incentive 
payments are recorded as medical expenses in the accompanying financial statements. 

Net pension liability/asset – The Health Authority recognizes a net pension liability/asset, which represents the 
proportionate share of the difference of the total pension asset/liability over the fiduciary net position of the 
pension reflected in the actuarial report provided by the California Public Employees' Retirement System 
(“CalPERS”). The net pension liability/asset is measured as of the Health Authority's prior fiscal year-end. 
Changes in the net pension liability/asset are recorded in the period incurred as pension expense and as deferred 
inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of the change. The changes in net 
pension liability/asset that are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources are 
recognized in pension expense systematically over time. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability/asset, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position, and additions to and deductions from the 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial 
Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when 
currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Other post-employment benefits asset – The Health Authority recognizes a net other post-employment 
benefits (“OPEB”) asset, which represents the difference of the total OPEB liability over the fiduciary net position 
of the Health Authority’s OPEB plan, which is administered by CalPERS. The net OPEB asset is measured as of 
the Health Authority's prior fiscal year-end. Changes in the net OPEB asset are recorded in the period incurred as 
OPEB expense and as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of 
the change. The changes in net OPEB asset that are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or deferred 
outflows of resources are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over time. 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position, and additions to and 
deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the 
CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value, except for money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost. FIN
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Net position – Net position is classified as net investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and 
unrestricted net position, which includes board designated funds. Net investment in capital assets represents 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Restricted net position is noncapital net position 
that must be used for a particular purpose, as specified by the state regulatory agency, grantors, or contributors 
external to the Health Authority. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition 
of restricted or net investment in capital assets and board designated funds. In December 2019, the Health 
Authority's Governing Board designated $16,000,000 for an Innovation fund and increased its previous 
designation for a Community-Based Organization fund to $4,000,000. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
$17,067,275 and $17,339,275 was unexpended, respectively. 

Capitation and premium revenue – The Health Authority has agreements with the Medi-Cal Program in the 
State of California to provide certain health care products and services to enrolled Medi-Cal beneficiaries. 
Eligibility of beneficiaries is determined by Santa Clara County Social Services Agency and validated by the State 
of California. The State of California provides the Health Authority the validated monthly eligibility file of program 
beneficiaries who are continuing, newly added, or terminated from the program in support of capitation revenue 
for the respective month. The Health Authority receives monthly premium payments from DHCS based on the 
number of enrolled Medi-Cal beneficiaries, regardless of services actually performed. Premiums are due from 
DHCS monthly and are recognized as revenue during the period in which the Health Authority is obligated to 
provide services to members. A portion of revenues received from DHCS is subject to possible retroactive 
adjustments. Provisions have been made for estimated retroactive adjustments. For the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020, premium revenues recorded from DHCS under the Medi-Cal Program totaled $1,229,229,175 
and $970,210,089, respectively. 

The Health Authority entered into a three-way contract with CMS and the DHCS effective January 1, 2015, to 
participate in the CMC program. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, premium revenues totaled 
$45,682,524 and $34,839,647, and $165,421,632 and $141,653,083 for the Medi-Cal and Medicare components 
of the CMC program, respectively. According to Chapter 33, Statutes of 2013 (SB 78, Committee on Budget and 
Fiscal Review), premium tax is imposed on only the revenues received by MCOs through their Medi-Cal and 
Healthy Kids managed care plans; consequently, Medicare revenues are not subject to premium tax. 

The Health Authority has an agreement with the County of Santa Clara to provide health care services to enrolled 
Healthy Kids beneficiaries. The Health Authority issues monthly invoices to the funding organization for its 
respective portion of premium costs for all Healthy Kids enrollees. Premiums are due monthly and are recognized 
as revenue in the period the Health Authority is obligated to provide medical services. A nominal monthly 
premium is invoiced directly to the family of the Healthy Kids enrolled child and recognized as revenue in the 
service month. Annual premium revenue for the Healthy Kids Program totaled $1,123,789 for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, and was funded by County of Santa Clara. All Health Kids members transitioned to Medi-Cal by 
December 31, 2019. FIN
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Premium deficiency reserves – The Health Authority performs periodic analyses of its expected future medical 
expenses and maintenance costs to determine whether such costs will exceed anticipated future revenues under 
its contracts. The Health Authority entered into a three-way contract with CMS and the DHCS effective January 1, 
2015, to participate in a demonstration project to integrate care for dual-eligible beneficiaries. The Contract shall 
be renewed in one-year terms through December 31, 2022. The Health Authority has the option to cancel this 
agreement prior to the end of each term. Management has estimated that it may incur losses on the contract. 
Accordingly, a premium deficiency reserve in the amount of $8,294,025 has been recorded at June 30, 2021 and 
2020. The Health Authority may receive future revenue adjustments in the form of shared risk corridor payments 
and CMS hierarchical condition category risk adjustment true-ups; however, these adjustments cannot currently 
be estimated. Management has determined that no other premium deficiency reserves are needed at June 30, 
2021 and 2020. 

Concentration of credit risk – A majority of the Health Authority's revenues are derived from contracts with 
DHCS and CMS. Loss of the contracts due to nonrenewal or legislative decisions that impact program funding or 
result in discontinuation could materially affect the financial position of the Health Authority. As of June 30, 2021, 
the Health Authority had premiums receivable of $490,415,912, $9,002,439, and $12,801,175 due from Medi-Cal 
Program, CMC program, and Medicare, respectively. As of June 30, 2020, the Health Authority had premiums 
receivable of $785,628,061, $7,405,424, $17,972,777, and $454 due from Medi-Cal Program, CMC program, 
Medicare, and Healthy Kids Program, respectively. 

Medical expenses – Hospital, physician, and other service costs are based on actual paid claims plus an estimate 
for accrued incurred but not reported claims. Claims are paid primarily on a fee-for-service basis. Many physicians 
belonging to medical groups and certain hospitals are compensated primarily on a capitation basis with provisions 
for additional incentive payments in certain circumstances. 

Operating revenues and expenses – The Health Authority's primary operating revenue is derived from 
capitation. As defined by GASB Codification Section P80, Proprietary Fund Accounting and Financial Reporting, 
all operating revenues are considered program revenues since they are charges for services provided and 
program-specific operating grants. The primary operating expense is medical care cost. Nonoperating revenues 
and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and investing types of 
activities and result from nonexchange transactions or net investment income and changes in the fair value of 
investments. 

Income taxes – The Health Authority is a public entity and falls under the purview of Internal Revenue Code, 
Section 115, and corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. As such, it is not subject to 
federal income or state franchise taxes. 

New accounting pronouncements – In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities 
(“GASB 84”). GASB 84 provides improved guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for 
accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The statement also 
provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that 
compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, 
Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance, which deferred the effective date of 
GASB 84 to reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Health Authority adopted GASB 84 in the 
current fiscal year. The Health Authority adopted GASB 84 in the current fiscal year. The adoption of this standard 
did not have significant impact to the financial statements. 

FIN
AL D

RAFT



Santa Clara County Health Authority  
(dba Santa Clara Family Health Plan) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 

21 

In June 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (“GASB 87”). GASB 87 increases the 
usefulness of financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources 
based on the payment provisions of the contract. GASB 87 also establishes a single model for lease accounting 
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. In May 
2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative 
Guidance, which deferred the effective date of GASB 87 to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. The Health 
Authority is reviewing the impact of the adoption of GASB 87 for the fiscal year ending 2022. 

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans – an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32 (“GASB 97”). GASB 97 
amends the criteria for reporting governmental fiduciary component units – separate legal entities included in a 
government’s financial statements. GASB 97 clarifies rules related to reporting of fiduciary activities under 
Statements No. 14 and No. 84 for defined contribution plans and to enhance the relevance, consistency, and 
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of IRC Code section 457 plans that meet the definition of a 
pension plan. The Health Authority adopted GASB 97 in the current fiscal year. The adoption of this standard did 
not have significant impact to the financial statements. 

Reclassifications – Certain amounts in the 2020 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
2021 presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on the 2020 operating income or net position. 

NOTE 2 – INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Health Authority’s investments consisted of money market funds, commercial 
paper, U.S. government agency bonds, corporate bonds, municipal bonds, asset back securities, commercial 
paper, and U.S. treasury securities. 

Interest rate risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. The Health Authority manages risk of market value fluctuations due to overall changes in 
the general level of interest rates by complying with California Government Code Section 53600.5. As of June 30, 
2021 and 2020, the Health Authority’s investments all have maturities of less than one year. 

Credit risk – Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. The following are the credit ratings for each investment type at June 30, 2021: 

Fair value AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- A-1+ A-1

Investments in:
U.S. government agency bonds 91,032,849$    25,549,604$    -$                 5,074,397$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 60,408,848$    -$                 
Corporate bonds 62,445,780      -                   3,019,216        -                   9,520,715        16,644,503      20,140,173      13,121,173      -                   -                   
Municipal bonds 13,108,692      1,925,611        499,868           6,596,581        4,086,632        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Commercial paper 40,257,340      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   24,658,032      15,599,308      
U.S. treasury securities 8,241,106        2,541,134        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   5,699,972        -                   

Total investments 215,085,767$  30,016,349$    3,519,084$      11,670,978$    13,607,347$    16,644,503$    20,140,173$    13,121,173$    90,766,852$    15,599,308$    

Description
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The following are the credit ratings for each investment type at June 30, 2020: 

Fair value AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- A-1+

Investments in:
U.S. government agency bonds 101,825,363$  2,026,549$      -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 99,798,814$    
Corporate bonds 34,790,027      2,047,076        -                   -                   2,015,254        22,744,968      7,982,729        -                   -                   
Municipal bonds 9,018,771        -                   1,681,741        2,560,532        -                   761,476           -                   -                   4,015,022        
Asset-backed securities 1,203,170        1,203,170        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Commercial paper 10,995,235      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   10,995,235      
U.S. treasury securities 42,050,789      18,358,657      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   23,692,132      

Total investments 199,883,355$  23,635,452$    1,681,741$      2,560,532$      2,015,254$      23,506,444$    7,982,729$      -$                 138,501,203$  

Description

Concentration of credit risk – Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a 
government’s investment in a single issuer. The Health Authority’s investments as a percentage of its portfolio at 
June 30, 2021 were as follows: 

Investment Issuer
Percentage of 

portfolio

U.S. government agency bonds Various 42.0                    %
Corporate bonds Various 29.0                    
Municipal bonds Various 6.0                      
Commercial paper Various 19.0                    
U.S. treasury securities Various 4.0                      

100.00                %

 
The Health Authority’s investments as a percentage of its portfolio at June 30, 2020 were as follows: 

Investment Issuer
Percentage of 

portfolio

U.S. government agency bonds Various 50.0                    %
Corporate bonds Various 17.0                    
Municipal bonds Various 5.0                      
Asset-backed securities Various 1.0                      
Commercial paper Various 6.0                      
U.S. treasury securities Various 21.0                    

100.00                %

 

NOTE 3 – FAIR VALUE 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value hierarchy is also established which 
requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when 
measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 – Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; 
quoted prices in active markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be 
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 
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Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the 
fair value of the assets or liabilities. 

The following table present fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying financial 
statements measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the 
fair value measurements fall at June 30: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021

Investments in:
U.S. government agency bonds -$                   91,032,849$      -$                   91,032,849$      
Corporate bonds -                     62,445,780        -                     62,445,780        
Municipal bonds -                     13,108,692        -                     13,108,692        

Total investments subject to fair value hierarchy -$                   166,587,321$    -$                   166,587,321      

Investments and restricted cash not subject to fair value hierarchy
Commercial paper 40,257,340        
U.S. treasury securities 8,241,106          
Certificate of deposits 325,000              

Total investments and restricted cash 215,410,767$    

Description

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020

Investments in:
U.S. government agency bonds -$                   101,825,363$    -$                   101,825,363$    
Corporate bonds -                     34,790,027        -                     34,790,027        
Municipal bonds -                     9,018,771          -                     9,018,771          
Asset-backed securities -                     1,203,170          -                     1,203,170          

Total investments subject to fair value hierarchy -$                   146,837,331$    -$                   146,837,331      

Investments and restricted cash not subject to fair value hierarchy
Commercial paper 10,995,235        
U.S. treasury securities 42,050,789        
Certificate of deposits 305,350              

Total investments and restricted cash 200,188,705$    

Description
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, are as follows: 

Beginning Reductions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Transfers Balance

Land 3,507,578$        1,550$                -$                   -$                   3,509,128$        
Furniture and equipment 12,642,255        594,237              -                     -                     13,236,492        
Building and building improvements 19,008,213        3,767,238          (214,889)            353,401              22,913,963        
Software  11,631,752        220,515              (18,297)              -                     11,833,970        
Vehicles 29,248                -                     -                     -                     29,248                
Building improvements work in progress 566,771              -                     (213,370)            (353,401)            -                     

Total capital assets 47,385,817        4,583,540          (446,556)            -                     51,522,801        

Less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization for:

Furniture and equipment 10,860,863        613,456              -                     -                     11,474,319        
Building and building improvements 1,557,918          1,327,117          -                     -                     2,885,035          
Software  8,306,167          1,783,962          -                     -                     10,090,129        
Vehicles 11,781                4,874                  -                     -                     16,655                

Total accumulated depreciation
and amortization 20,736,729        3,729,409          -                     -                     24,466,138        

Capital assets, net 26,649,088$      854,131$           (446,556)$          -$                   27,056,663$      

2021

2020

Beginning Reductions/ Ending
Balance Additions Adjustments Transfers Balance

Land 3,507,578$        -$                   -$                   -$                   3,507,578$        
Furniture and equipment 11,983,493        849,663              (6,290)                (184,611)            12,642,255        
Leasehold improvements -                     -                      -                     -                     -                     
Building and building improvements 17,267,569        1,568,598          (12,565)              184,611              19,008,213        
Software  11,342,155        408,577              (150,207)            31,227                11,631,752        
Vehicles 29,248                -                     -                     -                     29,248                
Software work in progress 61,887                 -                     (30,660)              (31,227)              -                     
Building improvements work in progress 566,771              -                     -                     -                     566,771              

Total capital assets 44,758,701        2,826,838          (199,722)            -                     47,385,817        

Less accumulated depreciation and 
amortization for:

Furniture and equipment 9,647,338          621,469              592,056              -                     10,860,863        
Leasehold improvements 592,056              -                     (592,056)            -                     -                     
Building and building improvements 755,003              802,915              -                     -                     1,557,918          
Software  6,365,158          1,941,009          -                     -                     8,306,167          
Vehicles 6,906                  4,875                  -                     -                     11,781                

Total accumulated depreciation
and amortization 17,366,461        3,370,268          -                     -                     20,736,729        

Capital assets, net 27,392,240$      (543,430)$          (199,722)$          -$                   26,649,088$      
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Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $3,729,409 and $3,370,268 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

NOTE 5 – MEDICAL INCURRED BUT NOT REPORTED CLAIMS AND MEDICAL CLAIMS PAYABLE 

The Health Authority estimates IBNR claims and medical claims payable based on historical claims payment and 
other relevant information. Estimates are monitored and reviewed and, as settlements are made or estimates are 
adjusted, differences are reflected in current operations. Such estimates are subject to impact of changes in the 
regulatory environment. Activity for medical IBNR and medical claims payable for the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, is summarized as follows: 

2021 2020

Beginning balance 84,105,151$      82,355,017$      

Incurred related to:
Current year 677,315,048      609,184,841      
Prior year (13,082,432)       (12,867,896)       

Total incurred 664,232,616      596,316,945      

Paid related to:
Current year 578,912,062      529,237,516      
Prior year 69,338,381        65,329,295        

Total paid 648,250,443      594,566,811      

Ending balance 100,087,324$    84,105,151$      

 
As presented in the table above, $664,232,616 and $596,316,945 in medical claims were incurred for the years 
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are reflected in medical services in the statements of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

IBNR liability increased by $15,982,173 in comparison to the previous year as a result of changes between actual 
payments for medical services and estimated amounts in previous years. Management believes the increase in 
estimated prior year’s claims experience is largely a result of higher-than-anticipated adverse health care claims 
experience. 

NOTE 6 – DESIGNATED NET POSITION 

Designated funds remain under the control of the Governing Board, which may, at its discretion, later use the 
funds for other purposes. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, board-designated funds of 
$17,067,275 and $17,339,275, respectively, were made. 
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NOTE 7 – OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

The Health Authority leases the Blanca Alvarado Community Resource Center and various equipment leases 
expiring in various years. 

Future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2021, consist of the following: 

Years Ending June 30,

2022 314,857$           
2023 326,711              
2024 316,187              
2025 212,484              
2026 18,157                

Total minimum lease payments 1,188,396$        

Rent expense, included in general and administrative expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position, for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $189,949 and $23,923, respectively. 

NOTE 8 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Internal Revenue Code 401(a) Plan – The Health Authority has a defined contribution plan under Section 401(a) 

of the Internal Revenue Code. For  employees hired prior to January 1, 2013, participants must contribute 6% of 

their gross compensation and the Health Authority must contribute 3% of the participant’s gross compensation. 
For employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, participants must contribute 6.25% of their gross compensation 
within a specific range and the Health Authority must contribute 6.533% of the participant’s gross compensation 
with the same specific range. For senior staff employees, the Health Authority contributes greater than 3% of 
gross compensation and senior staff employees contribute less than 6% of their gross compensation. 
Contributions by the Health Authority totaled $854,462 and $775,731 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 

The 401(a) plan is administered through a third-party administrator and is available to all employee groups. The 
Heath Authority does not perform the investment function and has no fiduciary accountability for the plan. Thus, 
plan assets and any related liability to plan participants have been excluded from the Health Authority’s financial 
statements. 

Internal Revenue Code 457 Plan – The Health Authority has a deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of 
the Internal Revenue Code. Participants may contribute up to the maximum allowed under Section 457. The 
Health Authority makes matching contributions only to 457 plan participants who are not participating in the 
401(a) plan. For those employees, the Health Authority matches 50% of employee contributions, up to a 
maximum of 3% of compensation. Matching contributions are made to the 401(a) plan. 
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The 457 plan is administered through a third-party administrator and is available to all employee groups. The 
Heath Authority does not perform the investment function and has no fiduciary accountability for the plan. Thus, 
plan assets and any related liability to plan participants have been excluded from the Health Authority’s financial 
statements. 

California Public Employees' Retirement System 

Plan description – The Health Authority participates in CalPERS, a cost sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for various local and state 
governmental agencies within the State of California. CalPERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits 
based on the employees' years of service, age, and final compensation. CalPERS provides retirement benefits 
payable beginning at age 55 that are equal to 2% of the employee's final 3-year average compensation multiplied 
by the employee's years of service. 

The State passed the California Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (“PEPRA”) which became effective on 
January 1, 2013. PEPRA changes include the classification of active employees into two distinct classifications: 
classic members and new members. Classic members represent active members hired before January 1, 2013, 
and retain the pension plan benefits in effect. This plan was closed to entrants on January 1, 2013, or after. New 
members are active members hired on or after January 1, 2013, and are subject to PEPRA. PEPRA offers a 
reduced benefit formula and increased retirement ages to new public employees, who first became PERS 
members on or after January 1, 2013. CalPERS provides retirement benefits payable beginning at age 62 that are 
equal to 2% of the employee's final 3-year average compensation times the employee's years of service. The 
provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute. CalPERS issues a stand-alone report that 
is available upon request at the following address: CalPERS Actuarial & Employer Service Division; P.O. Box 
942709; Sacramento, California 94229-2709. 

Funding policy – The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Health Authority are established 
and may be amended by CalPERS. With the election to participate in CalPERS, participation in Social Security is 
discontinued, and contributions to CalPERS are in lieu of contributions to Social Security. The Health Authority is 
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The employer contribution rate was 8.00% of annual 
covered payroll for both the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. All eligible participating employees are 
required to contribute 7.00% of their monthly salaries to CalPERS. The Health Authority deducts the contributions 
from employees' wages and remits to CalPERS on their behalf and for their account. Contributions to the pension 
plans from the Health Authority were $2,361,122 and $2,058,408 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. FIN
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Pension liability/asset, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pension – The net pension liability at June 30, 2021, is measured as of June 30, 2020, 
using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, rolled forward to June 30, 2020, using standard update 
procedures. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation was based on the following 
actuarial methods and assumptions: 

Actuarial cost method: Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 68 

Actuarial assumptions:  

Discount rate 7.15% 

Inflation 2.50% 

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 

Mortality rate table Derived using CaIPERS' Membership Data for all Funds 

Postretirement benefit increase: Contract COLA up to 2.50% until Purchasing Power Protection 
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies 

The net pension asset at June 30, 2020, is measured as of June 30, 2019, using an annual actuarial valuation as 
of June 30, 2018, rolled forward to June 30, 2019, using standard update procedures. The total pension asset in 
the June 30, 2018, actuarial valuation was based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 

Actuarial cost method: Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of GASB 
Statement No. 68 

Actuarial assumptions:  

Discount rate 7.15% 

Inflation 2.50% 

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service 

Mortality rate table Derived using CaIPERS' Membership Data for all Funds 

Postretirement benefit increase: Contract COLA up to 2.00% until Purchasing Power Protection 
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.50% thereafter 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 and 2018 valuations were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, mortality, and 
retirement rates. The experience study report can be obtained at the CalPERS' website under Forms and 
Publications. 

Change of assumptions – The inflation rate remained unchanged at 2.50% for the June 30, 2020 and 2019, 
measurement dates. FIN
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Discount rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension asset at June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
measurement date was 7.15%. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of 
a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that 
would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. The test revealed the assets would not run out. 
Therefore, the current 7.15% discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not 
deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.15% is applied to all plans in the Public Employees 
Retirement Fund. The cash flows used in the testing were developed assuming that both members and 
employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. The stress test 
results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained from the 
CalPERS website. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such cash flows were developed 
assuming that both members and employers will make the required contributions as scheduled in all future years. 
Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-
term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal 
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The 
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same 
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The 
expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down 
to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. 

Current Target 
Allocation

Real Return 

Years 1-10 (a)

Real Return 

Years 11+ (b)

Global equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

(a) An expected inflation rate of 2.00% was used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation rate of 2.92% was used for this period.

Asset Class
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Sensitivity of the employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability/asset to changes in the 
discount rate – The following presents the Health Authority's net pension liability/asset as of June 30, 2021 and 
2020, as well as what the net pension liability/asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% 
point lower or 1% point higher than the current rate: 

1% Decrease 
(6.15%)

Current
Discount Rate

(7.15%)
1% Increase 

(8.15%)

Health Authority's net pension liability (asset) 7,419,584$        199,654$           (5,765,948)$       

June 30, 2021

 

1% Decrease 
(6.15%)

Current
Discount Rate

(7.15%)
1% Increase 

(8.15%)

Health Authority's net pension (asset) liability 5,574,335$        (1,017,002)$       (6,457,686)$       

June 30, 2020

 
The Health Authority's proportion for the miscellaneous plan was 0.00183% and -0.00992% at June 30, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Health Authority recognized pension expense of $3,551,927 
and $2,924,828, respectively. Pension expense represents the change in the net pension liability/asset during the 
measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment 
gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. 

As of June 30, 2021, the Health Authority had $4,204,264 of deferred outflows of resources and $539,318 of 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Change in employers' proportionate share 1,248,667$        (84,236)$            
Difference in experience 10,290                -                     
Differences between employer's actual contributions and its

proportionate share of total employer contributions 573,703              (453,658)            
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 5,931                  -                     
Changes in assumptions -                     (1,424)                
Pension contributions made subsequent to measurement date 2,365,673          -                     

4,204,264$        (539,318)$          

2021
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As of June 30, 2020, the Health Authority had $5,296,371 of deferred outflows of resources and $1,661,827 of 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Change in employers' proportionate share 686,603$           (1,245,899)$       
Difference in experience 5,473                  (70,635)              
Differences between employer's actual contributions and its

proportionate share of total employer contributions 2,510,916          (296,798)            
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 17,780                -                     
Changes in assumptions 17,191                (48,495)              
Pension contributions made subsequent to measurement date 2,058,408          -                     

5,296,371$        (1,661,827)$       

2020

 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of 
changes to net pension liability/asset to be recognized in future periods in a systematic manner. 

Deferred outflows of resources of $2,365,673 and $2,058,408 resulting from contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability/asset in the years ending June 30, 
2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30,

2022 825,407$           
2023 311,187$           
2024 159,833$           
2025 2,846$                

 

NOTE 9 – POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH BENEFITS 

Plan description – The Health Authority participates in the California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust 
(“CERBT”), a single employer agent plan as administered by CalPERS to prefund its post-employment healthcare 
benefits. The Health Authority's OPEB plan provides healthcare benefits to eligible employees and certain 
dependents. Retired employees who retire directly from the health plan are eligible to receive contributions from 
the Health Authority toward their monthly Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (health plans offered 
by CalPERS) if they meet certain age and service eligibility requirements as outlined in the plan document and as 
approved by the Health Authority’s Governing Board. 
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Employees hired prior to May 1, 2018, who attain age 50, with a minimum of 5 years of CalPERS service, and are 
employed by the Health Authority at the time of retirement, are eligible for coverage. Employees hired on or after 
May 1, 2018, who attain age 50, with a minimum of 12 continuous years at the Health Authority, and are 
employed by the Health Authority at the time of retirement, are eligible for coverage. 

Copies of CERBT’s annual financial report may be obtained from the executive office at 400 Q Street, 
Sacramento, California 95811. A separate report for the Health Authority's participation in the CERBT trust is not 
available. 

Funding policy – For employees hired prior to May 1, 2018, the Health Authority pays for 90% of the cost of 
retiree medical plan premiums, including the cost for spouse and dependent coverage. Retirees are required to 
pay the other 10% of the cost of coverage. The Health Authority’s contribution is capped at 90% of the monthly 
premium cost of the second most expensive HMO plan available from CalPERS (basic and supplemental rates for 
non-Medicare and Medicare retirees, respectively) for retirees who elect PERS Care or out-of-state coverage. 
Upon the death of the retiree, the Health Authority will continue contributions described above for the surviving 
spouse or until surviving minor dependents reach age 26. 

For retirees hired on or after May 1, 2018, the Health Authority pays for 90% of the cost of retiree-only medical 
plan premiums. Retirees are required to pay the other 10% of the cost of coverage. The Health Authority’s 
contribution is capped at 90% of the employee-only premium cost of the second most expensive HMO plan 
available from CalPERS (basic and supplemental rates for non-Medicare and retirees, respectively) for retirees 
who elect PERS Care or out-of-state coverage. 

Employees covered – At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the following employees were covered by the plan: 

2021 2020

Active 300                     238                     
Retirees 58                       54                       

Total participants 358                     292                     

 
Contributions – The Health Authority must contribute the minimum required amount of $5,000 or the actuarially 
determined contribution, whichever is lower. The contribution requirements of the Health Authority are established 
and may be amended by the CERBT. 

Net OPEB asset – The Health Authority’s net OPEB asset at June 30, 2021 and 2020, was measured as of 
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and the total OPEB asset used to calculate the net OPEB asset was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. FIN
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The total OPEB asset in the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions:  

Actuarial cost method: Individual Entry Age Normal Level Percent of Pay 

Actuarial assumptions:  

Discount rate 6.75% 

Inflation 2.75% 

Investment rate of return 6.75% 

Healthcare cost trend rates: 7.00% for 2022 – Non-Medicare, decreasing to 4.00% in 2076, 6.10% 
for 2022 – Medicare, decreasing to 4.00% in 2076 

Mortality rates are based on statistics taken from the CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study Report. Mortality 
projected fully generational with Scale MP-19. 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions:  

Actuarial cost method: Individual Entry Age Normal Level Percent of Pay 

Actuarial assumptions:  

Discount rate 6.75% 

Inflation 2.75% 

Investment rate of return 6.75% 

Healthcare cost trend rates: 7.50% for 2019 – Non-Medicare, decreasing to 4.00% in 2076, 6.50% 
for 2019 – Medicare, decreasing to 4.00% in 2076 

Mortality rates are based on statistics taken from the CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study Report. Mortality 
projected fully generational with Scale MP-17. 

Discount rate – The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB asset was 6.75% at both June 30, 2020 and 
2019, measurement dates. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Health 
Authority contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those 
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB 
payments for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB asset. FIN
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The Health Authority’s retiree health plan assets are invested in the California Employers’ Retirement Benefit 
Trust Fund Strategy 1 (“Strategy”). The table below reflects the Strategy’s asset allocation. 

Asset Allocation
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Global equity 59.00% 4.82%
Fixed income 25.00% 1.47%
Treasury inflation-protected securities 5.00% 1.29%
Commodities 3.00% 0.84%
Real estate investment trusts 8.00% 3.76%

Assumed long-term rate of inflation 2.75%
Expected long-term net rate of return 6.75%

Asset Class

 
Changes in the net OPEB asset – The changes in the net OPEB asset for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, were as follows: 

Total
OPEB

Liability

Plan
Fiduciary

Net Position
 Net OPEB 

(Asset) 

Balance at June 30, 2020 11,878,467$      12,909,112$      (1,030,645)$       
Changes during the year:
Service cost 1,222,378          -                     1,222,378          
Interest on the total OPEB asset 867,980              -                     867,980              
Actual vs. expected experience -                     -                     -                     
Assumption changes -                     -                     -                     
Contributions from employer -                     3,018,143          (3,018,143)         
Net investment income -                     435,252              (435,252)            
Benefit payments (483,793)            (483,793)            -                     
Administrative expense -                     (6,630)                6,630                  

Net change 1,606,565          2,962,972          (1,356,407)         

Balance at June 30, 2021 13,485,032$      15,872,084$      (2,387,052)$       

June 30, 2021
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Total
OPEB

Liability

Plan
Fiduciary

Net Position
 Net OPEB 

Liability (Asset) 

Balance at June 30, 2019 12,492,170$      9,953,080$        2,539,090$        
Changes during the year:
Service cost 1,089,286          -                     1,089,286          
Interest on the total OPEB asset 901,963              -                     901,963              
Actual vs. expected experience (2,076,281)         -                     (2,076,281)         
Assumption changes (90,590)              -                     (90,590)              
Contributions from employer -                     2,601,369          (2,601,369)         
Net investment income -                     795,021              (795,021)            
Benefit payments (438,081)            (438,081)            -                     
Administrative expense -                     (2,277)                2,277                  

Net change (613,703)            2,956,032          (3,569,735)         

Balance at June 30, 2020 11,878,467$      12,909,112$      (1,030,645)$       

June 30, 2020

Sensitivity of the net OPEB asset to changes in the discount rate – The following presents the net OPEB 
liability of the Health Authority as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, as well as what the Health Authority’s net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease 
(5.75%)

Current
Discount Rate

(6.75%)
1% Increase 

(7.75%)

Health Authority's net OPEB (asset) (438,734)$          (2,387,052)$       (3,981,312)$       

June 30, 2021

 

1% Decrease 
(5.75%)

Current
Discount Rate

(6.75%)
1% Increase 

(7.75%)

Health Authority's net OPEB (asset) liability 676,268$           (1,030,645)$       (2,428,373)$       

June 30, 2020
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Sensitivity of the net OPEB asset to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates – The following presents the 
net OPEB asset of the Health Authority, as well as what the Health Authority’s net OPEB asset would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher 
than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease
in Healthcare 
Costs Trend 

Rate

Current
Healthcare 

Costs
Trend Rate

1% Increase
in Healthcare 
Costs Trend 

Rate

Health Authority's net OPEB (asset) liability (4,396,093)$       (2,387,052)$       161,692$           

June 30, 2021

 

1% Decrease
in Healthcare 
Costs Trend 

Rate

Current
Healthcare 

Costs
Trend Rate

1% Increase
in Healthcare 
Costs Trend 

Rate

Health Authority's net OPEB (asset) liability (2,684,513)$       (1,030,645)$       1,053,799$        

June 30, 2020

 
OPEB expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB – 
For the year ended June 2021, the Health Authority recognized OPEB expense of $1,008,472. At June 30, 2021, 
the Health Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred
outflows of 
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Difference in experience -$                   (1,664,999)$       
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments 291,278              -                     
Changes in assumptions 73,122                (72,288)              
OPEB contributions made subsequent to measurement date 2,844,693          -                     

3,209,093$        (1,737,287)$       

2021
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For the year ended June 2020, the Health Authority recognized OPEB expense of $1,008,809. At June 30, 2020, 
the Health Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred
outflows of 
resources

Deferred
inflows of
resources

Difference in experience -$                   (1,876,357)$       
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension

plan investments -                     (156,101)            
Changes in assumptions 87,746                (81,439)              
OPEB contributions made subsequent to measurement date 3,018,143          -                     

3,105,889$        (2,113,897)$       

2020

 
The Health Authority reported $2,844,693 and $3,018,143 as deferred outflows of resources related to 
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. This amount will be recognized as a reduction of net OPEB asset in the years ended June 30, 2022 
and 2021, respectively. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will 
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30,

2022 (169,478)$          
2023 (129,222)$          
2024 (124,433)$          
2025 (109,129)$          
2026 (205,886)$          
Thereafter (634,739)$          

 
Payable to the OPEB plan – At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Health Authority had no outstanding amount of 
contributions to the OPEB plan required for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

NOTE 10 – MEDICAL STOP LOSS INSURANCE 

The Health Authority has entered into certain stop-loss agreements with third parties in order to limit its losses on 
individual claims. Under the terms of these agreements, the third parties will reimburse the Health Authority 
certain proportions of the cost of each member's annual hospital services excluding those that are capitated, in 
excess of specified deductibles, up to a maximum of $1,500,000 per member per contract year. Insurance 
premiums are recorded as medical expenses and recoveries are recorded as a reduction of these expenses. 
Premiums exceeded stop-loss recoveries by $861,145 and $474,183 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
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NOTE 11 – TANGIBLE NET EQUITY 

As a limited license plan under the Knox-Keene Health Care Services Plan Act of 1975, the Health Authority is 
required to maintain a minimum level of tangible net equity. The required tangible net equity level was 
$33,804,554 and $32,471,000 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Health Authority's tangible net equity 
was $254,850,602 and $208,640,786 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

NOTE 12 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Health Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; business interruptions; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illness; natural disasters; and 
employee health, dental, and accident benefits. The Health Authority carries commercial insurance for claims 
arising from such matters, and no settled claims have ever exceeded the Health Authority's commercial coverage. 

NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

In the ordinary course of business, the Health Authority is a party to claims and legal actions by enrollees, 
providers, and governmental and regulatory agencies. The Health Authority's policy is to accrue for amounts 
related to these claims and legal actions if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the 
liability can be reasonably estimated. After consulting with legal counsel, Health Authority management is of the 
opinion that any liability that may ultimately result from claims or legal actions will not have a material effect on the 
financial position or results of operations of the Health Authority. 

NOTE 14 – HEALTH CARE REFORM 

There are various proposals at the federal and state levels that could, among other things, significantly change 
member eligibility, payment rates or benefits. The ultimate outcome of these proposals, including the potential 
effects of or changes to health care reform that will be enacted cannot presently be determined. 
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/Asset 
 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement period 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.00183% -0.00992% -0.02053% 0.01840% 0.07925% 0.07311% 0.07849%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 199,654$           (1,017,002)$       (1,978,644)$       1,824,796$        6,857,370$        5,018,386$        4,883,971$        

Covered-employee payroll* 26,732,488$      23,706,126$      19,966,458$      16,512,291$      11,010,647$      7,427,745$        9,121,825$        

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as
a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.75% -4.29% -9.91% 11.05% 62.28% 67.56% 53.54%

Proportionate share of plan's fiduciary net position as
a percentage of the plan's total pension liability (asset) 75.10% 75.26% 75.26% 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 80.43%

*For the year ending on the measurement date
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Schedule of Pension Contributions 
 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement period 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014

Actuarially determined contribution 2,365,673$        2,058,408$        1,669,920$        1,198,065$        1,287,320$        910,906$           886,335$           
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 2,365,673          2,058,408          1,669,920          4,426,715          7,188,179          910,906              886,335              

Contribution excess -$                   -$                   -$                   (3,228,650)$       (5,900,859)$       -$                   -$                   

Covered-employee payroll* 29,826,808$      26,732,488$      23,706,126$      19,966,458$      16,512,291$      11,010,647$      7,427,745$        

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll 7.93% 7.70% 7.04% 22.17% 43.53% 8.27% 11.93%

*For the fiscal year ending on the date shown
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Schedule of Changes in Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Asset/Liability 
 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Measurement period 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016

Total OPEB liability
Service cost 1,222,378$        1,089,286$        1,119,648$        756,248$           736,008$           
Interest on the total OPEB liability 867,980              901,963              805,036              708,213              648,807              
Actual vs. expected experience -                     (2,076,281)         -                     (14,700)              -                     
Assumption changes -                     (90,590)              -                     131,618              -                     
Benefit payments (483,793)            (438,081)            (478,669)            (542,029)            (499,704)            

Net change in total OPEB liability 1,606,565          (613,703)            1,446,015          1,039,350          885,111              
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 11,878,467        12,492,170        11,046,155        10,006,805        9,121,694          

Total OPEB liability, end of year 13,485,032$      11,878,467$      12,492,170$      11,046,155$      10,006,805$      

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions from employer 3,018,143$        2,601,369$        3,588,109$        1,142,027$        954,155$           
Net investment income 435,252              795,021              518,470              551,777              283,871              
Benefit payments (483,793)            (438,081)            (478,669)            (542,029)            (499,704)            
Administrative expense (6,630)                (2,277)                (12,267)              (2,784)                (2,239)                

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,962,972          2,956,032          3,615,643          1,148,991          736,083              
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning of year 12,909,112        9,953,080          6,337,437          5,188,446          4,452,363          

Plan fiduciary net position, end of year 15,872,084$      12,909,112$      9,953,080$        6,337,437$        5,188,446$        

Health Authority's net OPEB (asset) liability (2,387,052)$       (1,030,645)$       2,539,090$        4,708,718$        4,818,359$        

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
OPEB liability 117.70% 108.68% 79.67% 57.37% 51.85%

Covered-employee payroll* 26,732,488$      24,360,228$      20,046,373$      17,216,515$      17,195,643$      

Health Authority's net OPEB (asset) liability as a 
percentage of covered-employee payroll -8.93% -4.23% 12.67% 27.35% 28.02%

*For the year ending on the measurement date
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Schedule of Other Post-Employment Benefit Contributions 
 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Measurement period 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016

Actuarially determined contribution 624,728$           1,062,967$        1,269,369$        1,427,237$        1,217,313$        
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 2,844,693          3,018,143          2,601,369          3,588,109          1,217,313          

Contribution excess (2,219,965)$       (1,955,176)$       (1,332,000)$       (2,160,872)$       -$                   

Covered-employee payroll* 28,680,020$      26,732,488$      24,360,228$      20,046,373$      17,195,643$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.92% 11.29% 10.68% 17.90% 7.08%

*For the fiscal year ending on the date shown
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Regular Meeting of the 

Santa Clara County Health Authority 
Executive/Finance Committee 

Thursday, August 26, 2021, 10:30 AM – 12:30 PM 
Santa Clara Family Health Plan - Teleconference 
6201 San Ignacio Ave, San Jose, CA 95119 

MINUTES  
 

 

Members Present 
Sue Murphy, Chair 
Bob Brownstein 
Alma Burrell 
Dave Cameron 
Michele Lew 

Staff Present 
Christine Tomcala, Chief Executive Officer 
Neal Jarecki, Chief Financial Officer 
Laurie Nakahira, DO, Chief Medical Officer 
Jonathan Tamayo, Chief Information Officer 
Chris Turner, Chief Operating Officer 
Ngoc Bui-Tong, VP, Strategies & Analytics 
Laura Watkins, VP, Marketing & Enrollment 
Barbara Granieri, Controller 
Tyler Haskell, Director, Government Relations 
Johanna Liu, Director, Quality & Process Improvement 
Khanh Pham, Director, Financial Reporting & Budgeting 
Rita Zambrano. Executive Assistant 

1. Roll Call  
Susan Murphy, Chair, called the meeting to order at 10:30 am. Roll call was taken and a quorum was established. 

2. Public Comment 
There were no public comments. 

3. Approve Consent Calendar and Changes to the Agenda 

Ms. Murphy presented the Consent Calendar and indicated all agenda items would be approved in one motion. 
a. Approve July 22, 2021 Executive/Finance Committee Minutes 
b. Approve Claims Policy CL.29 Third Party Tort Liability Reporting Requirements 
c. Retire Finance Policy FA.13 Employee Recognition Gift Cards  
d. Accept Network Detection and Prevention Update 

It was moved, seconded, and the consent calendar was unanimously approved. 
Motion:  Ms. Lew 
Second: Mr. Brownstein 
Ayes:  Mr. Brownstein, Ms. Burrell, Mr. Cameron, Ms. Lew, Ms. Murphy 

4. Overview of Revenue & Rate-Setting 
Neal Jarecki, Chief Financial Officer, Ngo Bui-Tong, Vice President of Strategies & Analytics, and Barbara Granieri, 
Controller, gave a presentation highlighting the components, complexities, and uncertainties associated with the 
Plan’s Medi-Cal and Medicare revenue and rate-setting processes.   
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5. Preliminary June 2021 Financial Statements 
Mr. Jarecki presented the June 2021 pre-audit financial statements, which reflected a current month net surplus of 
$12.2 million ($15.9 million favorable to budget) and a fiscal year-to-date net surplus of $41.8 million ($55.7 million 
favorable to budget).   
Enrollment increased by 1,435 members from the prior month to 282,670 members (14,062 members favorable to 
budget). Year-to-date membership growth due to COVID-19 has exceeded budget due to the extended duration of 
the pandemic during which member disenrollments have been suspended.  
Revenue reflected a favorable current month variance of $21.6 million (23.8%) largely due to (1) favorable 
additional capitation premium revenue received due to the delayed carve-out of Medi-Cal pharmacy from 
managed care (with a largely-offsetting increase in medical expense), and (2) favorable enrollment due to the 
suspension of disenrollments, (3) favorable increased YTD CY21 Medi-Cal non-dual, dual MLTSS and CMC 
capitation rates higher than budgeted (retroactive to January 1, 2021), (4) favorable increased estimates for CY20 
Medicare quality withhold and Part D reconciliation, (5) favorable revised estimate of prior year MCO tax liability 
and (6) unfavorable potential DHCS Medi-Cal eligibility recoupment.  

Medical Expense reflected an unfavorable current month variance of $5.2 million (5.8%) largely due to (1) 
unfavorable additional pharmacy expense of $12.5 million due to the delayed carve-out of Medi-Cal pharmacy 
from managed care (offsetting the associated increased revenue), partially offset by (2) favorable unbudgeted 
pharmacy performance guarantees, (3) favorable fee-for-service utilization due to a general downward trend in 
utilization reflected in reductions in incurred-but-not-reported (IBNP) reserve estimates, (4) favorable lower than 
planned Long Term Care (LTC) enrollment and utilization, and (5) net favorable reduced capitation expense due 
to year-end reconciliation, and (6) unfavorable risk pool estimates.   
Administrative Expense reflected a favorable current month variance of $500 thousand (9.0%) due to lower 
headcount than budgeted and the timing of certain non-personnel expenses.  
The balance sheet reflected a Current Ratio, a key measure of liquidity, of 1.31:1 versus the DMHC minimum 
current ratio requirement of 1.00:1.  

Tangible Net Equity of $250.4 million, which represented approximately two months of the Plan’s total expenses, 
included unrestricted net assets of $205 million.  
Year-to-date capital investments of $4.1 million were made, predominately construction expenses of the Blanca 
Alvarado Community Resource Center. 
The final post-audit financial statements will be presented to the Executive/Finance Committee by the Plan’s 
auditors, Moss Adams LLP, at the October 2021 meeting.  

It was moved, seconded, and the June 2021 pre-audit financial statements were unanimously approved. 
Motion:   Mr. Cameron 
Second: Mr. Brownstein 
Ayes:  Mr. Brownstein, Ms. Burrell, Mr. Cameron, Ms. Lew, Ms. Murphy 

6. Resolution to Transfer Banking Relationship 
Mr. Jarecki noted that the Plan has conducted most of its operational banking and a large portion of its investment 
banking with Wells Fargo. Recently, Wells notified the Plan that their investment arm has been sold to a private 
equity firm. SCFHP evaluated other options for its banking relationships and proposes to move to City National Bank. 
City National Bank understands our unique healthcare business needs and successfully serves our sister Plans in 
San Francisco and Alameda. City National Bank will continue to manage our investments in compliance with 
SCFHP’s Investment Policy and the California government code at significantly lower total costs than Wells.   

It was moved, seconded, and the resolution to move the Plan’s banking relationship to City National Bank  
was unanimously approved. 
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Motion:  Ms. Lew 
Second: Mr. Cameron 
Ayes:  Mr. Brownstein, Ms. Burrell, Mr. Cameron, Ms. Lew, Ms. Murphy 

7. Team Incentive Compensation 
Christine Tomcala, Chief Executive Officer, presented the Plan's performance on FY '20-'21 Team Incentive 
Compensation Program metrics, noting how COVID challenged the team’s performance in many ways.  

Ms. Tomcala also presented a draft FY ‘21-‘22 Team Incentive Compensation Program proposal, designed to 
recognize employees for achieving five high priority Plan Objectives.  
Extensive discussion ensued. 

It was moved, seconded, and unanimously approved to request (1) a recommendation to recognize staff 
for their accomplishments during unusual and difficult circumstances in FY ’20-’21, and (2) a revised FY '21-
'22 Team Incentive Compensation Program proposal designed to engage the team on stretch goals and assist 
with retention. 
Motion:  Ms. Murphy 
Second: Mr. Cameron 
Ayes:  Mr. Brownstein, Ms. Burrell, Mr. Cameron, Ms. Lew, Ms. Murphy 

8. CEO Update  
Ms. Tomcala presented the updated SCFHP COVID-19 summary, noting cumulative members affected. She 
shared data on the percentage of vaccinated SCFHP members (63%) by age band and ethnicity compared to the 
county as a whole (86%). She further noted the State is looking to health plans to assist in closing the gaps, and is 
offering some monetary incentives. 

Ms. Tomcala shared that DHCS invited SCFHP to speak at an upcoming event and Johanna Liu, Director, Quality 
& Process Improvement, will be presenting. Ms. Tomcala shared additional COVID vaccine member data 
prepared for that event, including a breakdown by line of business. 

Ms. Tomcala gave a brief update on the Blanca Alvarado Community Resource Center (CRC), noting all exterior 
signage has been installed. She also shared pictures of the murals painted by a local East San Jose artist. The 
lobby mural is in honor of Blanca Alvarado and the kids’ room mural reflects the heritage of the community. Lastly, 
Ms. Tomcala noted the virtual grand opening for the CRC is September 17th. 

9. Government Relations Update 
Tyler Haskell, Director, Government Relations provided an update on relevant federal and state government actions. 
He discussed several potential health care provisions to be included in a congressional infrastructure bill. Mr. Haskell 
also provided an overview of new Medi-Cal programs included in the State budget, and an update on State 
legislation and the multi-year Medi-Cal reform plan known as CalAIM. 

10. Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:28pm. 
 

 
_______________________________  
Michele Lew, Secretary 
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Special Meeting of the 

Santa Clara County Health Authority 
Executive/Finance Committee 

Friday, October 22, 2021, 10:30 AM – 11:00 AM 
Santa Clara Family Health Plan 
6201 San Ignacio Ave, San Jose, CA 95119 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

Members Present 
Bob Brownstein, Chair 
Dave Cameron 
Michele Lew 
Members Absent 
Alma Burrell 
Sue Murphy 

 

Staff Present 
Christine Tomcala, Chief Executive Officer 
Neal Jarecki, Chief Financial Officer 
Jonathan Tamayo, Chief Information Officer 
Ngoc Bui-Tong, VP, Strategies & Analytics 
Teresa Chapman, VP, Human Resources 
Tyler Haskell, Interim Compliance Officer 
Rita Zambrano, Executive Assistant 

1. Roll Call  
Bob Brownstein, Chair, called the meeting to order at 10:30 am. Roll call was taken and a quorum was 
established. 

2. Public Comments  
There were no public comments. 

3. AB 361 Compliance 
Tyler Haskell, Interim Compliance Officer, explained the need for the Committee to meet in order to comply with 
AB 361. Under this new law, public agencies that intend to continue meeting by teleconference without providing 
public access to each teleconference location need to make certain findings and certify the ongoing need for 
teleconferencing within 30 days of the first teleconference meeting following enactment of AB 361, and every 30 
days thereafter. 

   It was moved, seconded and unanimously approved to continue use of teleconferencing without providing 
   public access to each teleconference location pursuant to Government Code Section 54953. 

  Motion:  Ms. Lew 
  Second:  Mr. Cameron 
  Ayes:   Mr. Brownstein, Mr. Cameron, Ms. Lew 

4. Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:34 am. 

 

_______________________________  
Michele Lew, Secretary 
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Financial Highlights
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MTD YTD
Revenue $114 M $226 M
Medical Expense (MLR) $104 M 91.2% $205 M 90.7%
Administrative Expense (% Rev) $5.6 M 4.9% $11.1 M 4.9%
Other Income/(Expense) $147K $298K
Net Surplus (Net Loss) $4.6 M $10.2 M

Cash and Investments $411 M
Receivables $545 M
Total Current Assets $966 M
Current Liabilities $738 M
Current Ratio 1.31                
Tangible Net Equity $260 M
% of DMHC Requirement 734.3%



Financial Highlights
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 Month: Surplus of $4.6M is $3.2M or 228.7% favorable to budget of $1.4M surplus.
 YTD: Surplus of $10.2M is $7.5M or 269.2% favorable to budget of $2.8M surplus.
 Month: Membership was 285,472 (1,471 or 0.5% lower than budget of 286,943).
 YTD: Member Months YTD was 569,650 (2,218 or 0.4% lower than budget of 571,868).
 Month: $114.0M ($1.7M or 1.6% favorable to budget of $112.3M).
 YTD: $226.1M ($2.4M or 1.1% favorable to budget of $223.7M).
 Month: $103.9M ($854K or 0.8% favorable to budget of $104.8M).
 YTD: $205.1M ($3.7M or 1.8% favorable to budget of $208.8M).
 Month: $5.6M ($841K or 13.0% favorable to budget of $6.5M).
 YTD: $11.1M ($1.8M or 14.0% favorable to budget of $12.9M).

Tangible Net Equity  TNE was $260.5M (represents approximately two months of total expenses).

Capital Expenditures  YTD Capital Investments of $493K vs. $3.3M annual budget, primarily software.

Net Surplus (Net Loss)

Enrollment

Revenue

Medical Expenses

Administrative Expenses



Detail Analyses



Enrollment
• Total enrollment of 285,472 members is 1,471 or 0.5% lower than budget.  Since the beginning of the fiscal year, 

total enrollment has increased by 2,802 members or 1.0%.

• Medi-Cal enrollment has been increasing since January 2020, largely due to COVID (beginning in March 2020 
annual eligibility redeterminations were suspended and enrollment continues to increase as a result). 

• Since the beginning of the fiscal year, Medi-Cal Non-Dual enrollment has increased 1.0%, Medi-Cal Dual enrollment 
has increased 1.1%, and CMC enrollment has grown 1.6%.
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For the Month August 2021 For Two Months Ending August 31, 2021

∆

Actual Budget Variance Variance (%) Actual Budget Variance Variance (%)
Prior Year 

Actuals
FY22 vs. 

FY21
Medi-Cal 275,227 276,708 (1,481) (0.5%) 549,257 551,498 (2,241) (0.4%) 499,011 10.1%
Cal Medi-Connect 10,245 10,235 10 0.1% 20,393 20,370 23 0.1% 18,295 11.5%

Total 285,472 286,943 (1,471) (0.5%) 569,650 571,868 (2,218) (0.4%) 517,306 10.1%

13.00 21.00 7.00
Network Medi-Cal CMC

Enrollment % of Total Enrollment % of Total Enrollment % of Total
Direct Contract Physicians 35,601          13% 10,245          100% 45,846 16%
SCVHHS1, Safety Net Clinics, FQHC2 Clinics 137,005        50% ## -                 0% # 137,005 48%
Palo Alto Medical Foundation 7,378            3% ## -                 0% # 7,378 3%
Physicians Medical Group 46,561          17% ## -                 0% # 46,561 16%
Premier Care 15,818          6% ## -                 0% # 15,818 6%
Kaiser 32,864          12% ## -                 0% # 32,864 12%

Total 275,227        100% 10,245          100% 285,472 100%

Enrollment at June 30, 2021 272,590        10,080          282,670        

Net ∆ from Beginning of FY22 1.0% 1.6% 1.0%

1  SCVHHS = Santa Clara Valley Health & Hospital System
2  FQHC = Federally Qualified Health Center

Santa Clara Family Health Plan Enrollment By Network
August 2021

Total



Enrollment By Aid Category
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2020-08 2020-09 2020-10 2020-11 2020-12 2021-01 2021-02 2021-03 2021-04 2021-05 2021-06 2021-07 2021-08 FYTD var %
NON DUAL Adult (over 19) 27,877 28,269 29,181 29,835 30,327 30,750 31,307 31,711 32,106 32,577 32,997 32,995 33,281 284 0.9%
NON DUAL Child (under 19) 97,359 97,629 98,409 98,930 99,012 99,172 99,377 99,557 99,872 100,245 100,477 101,010 101,085 608 0.6%

SPD 22,099 22,079 22,149 22,169 22,245 22,350 22,308 22,281 22,290 22,291 22,301 22,363 22,276 -25 (0.1%)
NON DUAL Adult Expansion 77,701 79,263 80,654 82,060 83,250 84,477 85,477 86,677 88,035 89,361 89,957 90,711 91,392 1,435 1.6%
NON DUAL Long Term Care 406 407 409 389 393 388 380 373 375 367 365 414 408 43 11.8%
NON DUAL Total Non-Duals 225,442 227,647 230,802 233,383 235,227 237,137 238,849 240,599 242,678 244,841 246,097 247,493 248,442 2,345 1.0%

DUAL Adult (over 21) 320 337 354 353 353 352 355 361 357 365 366 367 376 10 2.7%
SPD 23,686 23,654 23,687 23,760 23,988 23,899 24,155 24,206 24,168 24,146 24,115 23,980 24,159 44 0.2%

DUAL Long Term Care 1,267 1,256 1,237 1,208 1,182 1,115 1,074 1,054 1,038 1,031 1,060 1,127 1,115 55 5.2%
DUAL SPD OE 289 358 410 498 537 590 662 742 802 863 952 1,063 1,135 183 19.2%
DUAL Total Duals 25,562 25,605 25,688 25,819 26,060 25,956 26,246 26,363 26,365 26,405 26,493 26,537 26,785 292 1.1%

Total Medi-Cal 251,004 253,252 256,490 259,202 261,287 263,093 265,095 266,962 269,043 271,246 272,590 274,030 275,227 2,637 1.0%

CMC Non-Long Term Care 9,055 9,212 9,360 9,470 9,613 9,614 9,706 9,696 9,745 9,809 9,895 9,939 10,037 142 1.4%
CMC - Long Term Care 211 216 210 209 207 193 187 184 179 180 185 209 208 23 12.4%
Total CMC 9,266 9,428 9,570 9,679 9,820 9,807 9,893 9,880 9,924 9,989 10,080 10,148 10,245 165 1.6%

Total Enrollment 260,270 262,680 266,060 268,881 271,107 272,900 274,988 276,842 278,967 281,235 282,670 284,178 285,472 2,802 1.0%

CMC

SCFHP TRENDED ENROLLMENT BY COA  YTD  AUGUST-2021



Enrollment Trend
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• Budgeted enrollment, represented by the green & brown lines, anticipated steep COVID enrollment growth 
early in the fiscal year followed by a general flattening.

• Actual enrollment, represented by the gold & blue lines, has grown steadily.



Current Month Revenue
Current month revenue of $114.0M was $1.7M or 1.6% favorable to budget of $112.3M. The current 
month variance was primarily due to the following:

• Medi-Cal revenue is $1.2M favorable to budget due to higher CY21 MLTSS, LTC and SPD rates, 
partly offset by lower enrollment than budget.  

• Supplemental kick revenue was $679K favorable to budget due to increased BHT utilization and 
higher maternity deliveries. 

• MCAL Prop-56 revenue is $183K unfavorable to budget due to lower enrollment than estimated 
budget (offset with favorable Prop-56 expense).

• CMC revenue was $23K net favorable to budget due to higher CY21 CCI rate, offset with lower 
Medicare Part C rate. 
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YTD Revenue
YTD revenue of $226.1M was $2.4M or 1.1% favorable to budget of $223.7M. The YTD variance was 
primarily due to the following:

• Supplemental kick revenue was $2.2M favorable to budget due to increased BHT utilization and 
higher maternity deliveries. 

• Medi-Cal revenue is $750K favorable to budget due to higher CY21 MLTSS, LTC and SPD rates, 
offset with lower enrollment than budget.

• MCAL Prop-56 revenue is $352K unfavorable to budget due to lower enrollment than estimated 
budget (offset with favorable Prop-56 expense).

• CMC revenue was $150K net unfavorable to budget due to lower than anticipated Medicare Part C 
rate, offset with higher CY21 CCI rate.

10



Current Month Medical Expense
Current month medical expense of $103.9M was $854K or 0.8% favorable to budget of $104.8M.  
The current month variance was due largely to:

• Fee-For-Service expenses reflected a $1.5M or 3.4% unfavorable variance due to higher than 
expected cost and increased utilization on supplemental services such as Behavioral Health 
Treatment reflected in higher IBNR estimates.

• Pharmacy expenses were $1.5M or 8.0% favorable to budget due to lower cost increases versus 
budget, especially in diabetic drugs, and lower utilization.

• Capitation expense was $628K or 1.6% favorable to budget due to lower capitated enrollment.
• Vision, Reinsurance and Other expenses were $194K or 5.2% favorable to budget due to timing of 

spending on Board Designated expenses and lower Reinsurance Recovery.
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YTD Medical Expense
YTD medical expense of $205.1M was $3.7M or 1.8% favorable to budget of $208.8M.  
The YTD variance was due largely to:

• Fee-For-Service expenses reflected a $1.4M or 1.6% unfavorable variance due to increased 
utilization on supplemental services such as Behavioral Health Treatment and high maternity 
deliveries (offset with favorable revenue variance).

• Pharmacy expenses were $3.4M or 9.0% favorable to budget, due to lower cost increases versus 
budget especially in diabetic drugs, and lower utilization.

• Capitation expense was $1.1M or 1.4% favorable to budget due to lower capitated enrollment.
• Vision, Reinsurance and Other expenses were $618K or 8.4% favorable to budget due to timing of 

spending on Board Designated expenses and higher claim recovery.

12



Current Month Administrative Expense
Current month expense of $5.6M was $841K or 13.0% favorable to budget of $6.5M.  The 
current month variances were primarily due to the following:

• Personnel expenses were $338K or 8.2% favorable to budget due to lower headcount 
than budget including lower payroll tax and benefits.

• Non-Personnel expenses were $503K or 21.7% favorable to budget due to the timing of 
budget spending in certain expenses (consulting, contract service, translation, 
advertising and other fees).
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YTD Administrative Expense
YTD administrative expense of $11.1M was $1.8M or 14.0% favorable to budget of $12.9M.  
The YTD variance was primarily due to the following:

• Personnel expenses were $588K or 7.1% favorable to budget due to lower headcount 
than budget including lower payroll tax and benefits.

• Non-Personnel expenses were $1.2M or 26.2% favorable to budget due to the timing of 
budget spending in certain expenses (consulting, contract service, translation, 
advertising and other fees).
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Balance Sheet
• Current assets totaled $966M compared to current liabilities of $738M, yielding a current ratio (Current 

Assets/Current Liabilities) of 1.31:1 vs. the DMHC minimum requirement of 1.0:1.

• On a YTD basis, the overall cash balance decreased by $2.6M compared to the cash balance as of year-
end June 30, 2021 due to the timing of inflows and outflows. 

• Current Cash & Equivalents components and yields were as follows: 

• County of Santa Clara Comingled Pool funds have longer-term investments which currently provide a 
higher yield than WFB Investments. 

• Overall cash and investment yield is lower than budget (0.38% actual vs. 1.4% budgeted).
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Month YTD
Short-Term Investments

County of Santa Clara Comingled Pool $182,649,335 0.76% $90,096 $190,096
Wells Fargo Investments $194,960,063 0.10% $24,555 $41,944

$377,609,397 $114,651 $232,040
Cash & Equivalents

Bank of the West Money Market $343,274 0.10% $320 $1,217
Wells Fargo Bank Accounts $32,406,504 0.01% $343 $720

$32,749,778 $663 $1,937
Assets Pledged to DMHC

Restricted Cash $325,000 0.18% $0 $0

Petty Cash $500 0.00% $0 $0

Month-End Balance $410,684,675 $115,314 $233,976

Description Cash & Investments Current Yield % Interest Income



Tangible Net Equity

• TNE was $260.5M - representing approximately two months of the Plan’s total expenses.
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40,724.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00 6.00
Jun-13 Jun-14 Jun-15 Jun-16 Jun-17 Jun-18 Jun-19 Jun-20 Jun-21 Aug-21

Actual Net Position/Reserves $32.6 M $40.9 M $72.6 M $100.3 M $158.4 M $178.0 M $202.1 M $208.6 M $250.4 M $260.5 M
Required Reserves per DMHC $7.8 M $11.4 M $19.3 M $32.4 M $35.9 M $36.8 M $30.9 M $31.3 M $33.9 M $35.5 M
200% of Required Reserve $15.6 M $22.9 M $38.5 M $64.8 M $71.8 M $73.6 M $61.8 M $62.5 M $67.8 M $70.9 M
Actual as % Required 418.5% 357.5% 376.9% 309.8% 441.2% 483.4% 654.4% 667.2% 739.1% 734.3%

As of August 31, 2021
Tangible Net Equity - Actual vs. Required

Santa Clara Health Authority

$0.0 M

$50.0 M

$100.0 M

$150.0 M

$200.0 M

$250.0 M

$300.0 M

Jun-13 Jun-14 Jun-15 Jun-16 Jun-17 Jun-18 Jun-19 Jun-20 Jun-21 Aug-21

Tangible Net Equity
Actual vs. Required

Actual Net Position/Reserves Required Reserves per DMHC 200% of Required Reserve



Reserves Analysis

• Unrestricted Net Assets represents less than two months of total expenses.

Note 1: In December 2018, the Governing Board established a Board Discretionary Fund for Special Projects 
of $2.2M.  In December 2019, the Governing Board also approved additional $1.8M for Special Project fund 
($4M total) and $16M for Innovation & COVID-19 Fund.

Note 2: Other Pass-Through Liabilities include HQAF, Rate Range IGT, and DHCS overpayments. 

Note 3: SCFHP Target Liquidity is based on total monthly budgeted expenses.
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SCFHP RESERVES ANALYSIS AUGUST 2021

Financial Reserve Target #1: Tangible Net Equity
Board Funds
Committed

Approved
Projects

Funds
Expended Balance

Unrestricted Net Assets $216,279,816 *
Board Designated Funds (Note 1):

        Special Project Funding for CBOs $4,000,000 $961,743 $662,727 $3,337,274
        Innovation & COVID-19 Fund $16,000,000 $4,880,000 $2,317,996 $13,682,004
        Subtotal $20,000,000 $5,841,743 $2,980,723 $17,019,277
Net Book Value of Fixed Assets $26,857,935
Restricted Under Knox-Keene Agreement $325,000
Total Tangible Net Equity (TNE) $260,482,028

Current Required TNE $35,471,901
  TNE % 734.3%

SCFHP Target TNE Range:
350% of Required TNE (Low) $124,151,654
500% of Required TNE (High) $177,359,506

Total TNE Above/(Below) SCFHP Low Target $136,330,374

Total TNE Above/(Below) High Target $83,122,523

Financial Reserve Target #2: Liquidity

Cash & Investments $410,684,675

Less Pass-Through Liabilities:
Hospital Directed Payments (23,619,810)
MCO Tax Payable to State of CA (24,885,874)
Whole Person Care / Prop 56 (50,100,271)
Other Pass-Through Liabilities (Note 2) (61,524,107)

Total Pass-Through Liabilities (160,130,062)

Net Cash Available to SCFHP 250,554,613

SCFHP Target Liquidity (Note 3)
45 Days of Total Operating Expense (166,856,088)
60 Days of Total Operating Expense (222,474,784)

Liquidity Above/(Below) SCFHP Low Target 83,698,525

Liquidity Above/(Below) High Target $28,079,829



Capital Expenditures
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• YTD Capital investments of $493K, largely due to software acquisition, were comprised of the 
following: 

Expenditure YTD Actual Annual Budget

Community Resource Center $5,922 $55,800

Hardware $27,058 $1,060,000

Software $418,035 $1,896,874

Building Improvements $41,931 $62,000

Furniture & Equipment $0 $179,101

TOTAL $492,946 $3,253,775



Financial Statements



Income Statement
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Aug-2021 % of Aug-2021 % of YTD Aug-2021 % of YTD Aug-2021 % of
Actuals Rev Budget Rev $ % Actuals Rev Budget Rev $ %

REVENUES
MEDI-CAL  $         95,610,089 83.9%  $             93,888,422 83.6%  $       1,721,667 1.8%  $      189,732,470 83.9%  $          187,181,204 83.7%  $       2,551,266 1.4%

CMC MEDI-CAL 4,126,674 3.6% 3,719,223 3.3% 407,451 11.0% 7,917,367 3.5% 7,402,219 3.3% 515,148 7.0%
CMC MEDICARE 14,259,861 12.5% 14,643,931 13.0% (384,070) -2.6% 28,480,017 12.6% 29,144,785 13.0% (664,768) -2.3%

TOTAL CMC 18,386,535 16.1% 18,363,154 16.4% 23,382 0.1% 36,397,384 16.1% 36,547,004 16.3% (149,620) -0.4%
TOTAL REVENUE  $      113,996,624 100.0%  $          112,251,576 100.0%  $       1,745,048 1.6%  $      226,129,854 100.0%  $          223,728,208 100.0%  $       2,401,646 1.1%

MEDICAL EXPENSES
MEDI-CAL  $         87,374,767 76.6%  $             87,852,770 78.3%  $          478,002 0.5%  $      173,257,233 76.6%  $          175,112,016 78.3%  $       1,854,783 1.1%

CMC MEDI-CAL 3,193,823 2.8% 2,968,554 2.6% (225,269) -7.6% 6,166,839 2.7% 5,905,223 2.6% (261,616) -4.4%

CMC MEDICARE 13,356,309 11.7% 13,958,003 12.4% 601,694 4.3% 25,639,492 11.3% 27,767,644 12.4% 2,128,152 7.7%
TOTAL CMC 16,550,132 14.5% 16,926,557 15.1% 376,425 2.2% 31,806,331 14.1% 33,672,867 15.1% 1,866,536 5.5%

TOTAL MEDICAL EXPENSES  $      103,924,900 91.2%  $          104,779,327 93.3%  $          854,427 0.8%  $      205,063,564 90.7%  $          208,784,883 93.3%  $       3,721,319 1.8%

MEDICAL OPERATING MARGIN  $         10,071,725 8.8%  $               7,472,249 6.7%  $       2,599,476 34.8%  $         21,066,290 9.3%  $             14,943,326 6.7%  $       6,122,964 41.0%

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
SALARIES AND BENEFITS  $           3,807,617 3.3%  $               4,145,977 3.7%  $          338,360 8.2%  $           7,672,987 3.4%  $               8,260,914 3.7%  $          587,926 7.1%
RENTS AND UTILITIES 37,536 0.0% 42,067 0.0% 4,531 10.8% 74,120 0.0% 84,133 0.0% 10,013 11.9%
PRINTING AND ADVERTISING 8,388 0.0% 109,542 0.1% 101,154 92.3% 63,271 0.0% 217,083 0.1% 153,813 70.9%
INFORMATION SYSTEMS 293,417 0.3% 376,194 0.3% 82,777 22.0% 578,128 0.3% 752,388 0.3% 174,261 23.2%
PROF FEES/CONSULTING/TEMP STAFFING 805,896 0.7% 1,082,542 1.0% 276,647 25.6% 1,451,455 0.6% 2,196,820 1.0% 745,365 33.9%
DEPRECIATION/INSURANCE/EQUIPMENT 408,372 0.4% 407,277 0.4% (1,095) -0.3% 825,744 0.4% 841,320 0.4% 15,576 1.9%
OFFICE SUPPLIES/POSTAGE/TELEPHONE 38,411 0.0% 62,242 0.1% 23,831 38.3% 81,214 0.0% 124,484 0.1% 43,270 34.8%
MEETINGS/TRAVEL/DUES 118,276 0.1% 132,918 0.1% 14,642 11.0% 197,920 0.1% 267,630 0.1% 69,710 26.0%
OTHER 99,074 0.1% 99,307 0.1% 232 0.2% 184,833 0.1% 198,613 0.1% 13,780 6.9%

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES  $           5,616,987 4.9%  $               6,458,065 5.8%  $          841,078 13.0%  $         11,129,673 4.9%  $             12,943,387 5.8%  $       1,813,714 14.0%

OPERATING SURPLUS (LOSS)  $           4,454,738 3.9%  $               1,014,184 0.9%  $       3,440,554 339.2%  $           9,936,618 4.4%  $               1,999,939 0.9%  $       7,936,679 396.8%

INTEREST & INVESTMENT INCOME  $              115,314 0.1%  $                  350,000 0.3%  $        (234,686) -67.1%  $              233,976 0.1%  $                  700,000 0.3%  $        (466,024) -66.6%
OTHER INCOME 31,681 0.0% 35,986 0.0% (4,305) -12.0% 63,697 0.0% 71,972 0.0% (8,275) -11.5%

NON-OPERATING INCOME  $              146,995 0.1%  $                  385,986 0.3%  $        (238,991) -61.9%  $              297,673 0.1%  $                  771,972 0.3%  $        (474,298) -61.4%

NET NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $              146,995 0.1%  $                  385,986 0.3%  $        (238,991) -61.9%  $              297,673 0.1%  $                  771,972 0.3%  $        (474,298) -61.4%

NET SURPLUS (LOSS)  $           4,601,733 4.0%  $               1,400,170 1.2%  $       3,201,563 228.7%  $         10,234,291 4.5%  $               2,771,911 1.2%  $       7,462,380 269.2%

Current Month Variance YTD Variance

Santa Clara County Health Authority
INCOME STATEMENT

For Two Months Ending August 31, 2021
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Aug-2021 Jul-2021 Jun-2021 Aug-2020
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Investments 410,684,675 398,162,794 408,072,066 316,296,570
Receivables 545,328,817 517,305,841 512,740,456 822,345,634
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 9,745,923 9,153,230 8,562,115 10,324,440

          Total Current Assets 965,759,416 924,621,866 929,374,636 1,148,966,644

Long Term Assets
Property and Equipment 52,015,817 51,843,223 51,522,871 49,078,265
Accumulated Depreciation (25,157,882) (24,811,725) (24,466,207) (21,274,764)

Total Long Term Assets 26,857,935 27,031,498 27,056,664 27,803,501
Total Assets 992,617,351 951,653,364 956,431,300 1,176,770,145

Deferred Outflow of Resources 8,402,260 8,402,260 8,402,260 8,402,260

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows 1,001,019,611 960,055,624 964,833,560 1,185,172,405

Liabilities and Net Assets:
  Current Liabilities
     Trade Payables 5,606,815 5,700,450 8,471,129 7,871,178
     Deferred Rent 47,735 48,033 48,331 47,822
     Employee Benefits 3,210,465 3,212,807 3,127,996 2,324,666
     Retirement Obligation per GASB 75 3,082,363 3,002,113 2,921,863 2,282,031
     Deferred Revenue - Medicare 0 13,017,533 0 0
     Whole Person Care / Prop 56 50,100,271 47,032,789 44,001,737 37,973,007
     Payable to Hospitals 103,357 103,819 103,819 529,171
     Payable to Hospitals 23,516,453 472,944 472,944 274,742,278
     Pass-Throughs Payable 182 181 181 26,877
     Due to Santa Clara County Valley Health Plan and Kaiser 19,402,761 21,173,902 22,785,679 10,742,452
     MCO Tax Payable - State Board of Equalization 24,885,874 14,757,661 31,975,622 66,846,203
     Due to DHCS 61,523,925 60,544,069 59,840,355 49,216,269
     Liability for In Home Support Services (IHSS) 419,990,933 419,990,933 419,990,933 419,268,582
    Current Premium Deficiency Reserve (PDR) 8,294,025 8,294,025 8,294,025 8,294,025

     Medical Cost Reserves 117,831,473 103,996,870 109,599,924 90,876,542
  Total Current Liabilities 737,596,633 701,348,130 711,634,538 971,041,103

  Non-Current Liabilities
     Net Pension Liability GASB 68 1,279,123 1,165,372.68           1,289,458 487,472
  Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,279,123 1,165,372.68           1,289,458 487,472

Total Liabilities 738,875,756 702,513,502 712,923,996 971,528,575

Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,661,827 1,661,827 1,661,827 1,661,827

Net Assets
     Board Designated Fund: Special Project Funding for CBOs 3,337,274 3,337,274 3,337,274 3,459,274
     Board Designated Fund: Innovation & COVID-19 Fund 13,682,004 13,730,001 13,730,001 13,880,001
     Invested in Capital Assets (NBV) 26,857,935 27,031,498 27,056,664 27,803,501
     Restricted under Knox-Keene agreement 325,000 325,000 325,000 305,350
     Unrestricted Net Equity 206,045,525 205,823,965 164,191,849 163,192,661
     Current YTD Income (Loss) 10,234,291 5,632,558 41,606,950 3,341,216
          Total Net Assets /  Reserves 260,482,028 255,880,295 250,247,737 211,982,003

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Assets 1,001,019,611 960,055,624 964,833,560 1,185,172,405

SANTA CLARA COUNTY HEALTH AUTHORITY
As of August 31, 2021



Cash Flow Statement
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Aug-2021
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Premiums Received 97,081,719
Medical Expenses Paid (91,861,438)
Adminstrative Expenses Paid 7,327,200

Net Cash from Operating Activities 12,547,480

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assets (172,594)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income and Other Income (Net) 146,995

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 12,521,881

Cash & Investments (Beginning) 398,162,794
Cash & Investments (Ending) 410,684,675

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash from Operating Activities
Operating Income/(Loss) 4,454,738

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash from Operating Activities
Depreciation 346,157

Changes in Operating Assets/Liabilities
Premiums Receivable (28,022,975)
Prepaids & Other Assets (592,693)
Accounts Payable & Accrued Liabilities 13,076,972
State Payable 11,108,070
IGT, HQAF & Other Provider Payables (1,771,141)
Net Pension Liability 113,750
Medical Cost Reserves & PDR 13,834,603
IHSS Payable 0

Total Adjustments 8,092,742
Net Cash from Operating Activities 12,547,480



Statement of Operations by Line of Business - YTD
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Aug-2021
Medi-Cal CMC Medi-Cal CMC Medicare Total CMC Grand Total

P&L (ALLOCATED BASIS)
REVENUE $189,732,470 $7,917,367 $28,480,017 $36,397,384 $226,129,854

MEDICAL EXPENSE $173,257,233 $6,166,839 $25,639,492 $31,806,331 $205,063,564
(MLR) 91.3% 77.9% 90.0% 87.4% 90.7%

GROSS MARGIN $16,475,237 $1,750,528 $2,840,525 $4,591,053 $21,066,290

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE $9,338,264 $389,677 $1,401,731 $1,791,409 $11,129,673
(% of Revenue Allocation)

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) $7,136,973 $1,360,850 $1,438,794 $2,799,644 $9,936,618
(% of Revenue Allocation)

OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE) $249,760 $10,422 $37,491 $47,913 $297,673
(% of Revenue Allocation)

NET INCOME/(LOSS) $7,386,734 $1,371,273 $1,476,284 $2,847,557 $10,234,291

PMPM (ALLOCATED BASIS)
REVENUE $345.43 $388.24 $1,396.56 $1,784.80 $396.96
MEDICAL EXPENSES $315.44 $302.40 $1,257.27 $1,559.67 $359.98
GROSS MARGIN $30.00 $85.84 $139.29 $225.13 $36.98
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $17.00 $19.11 $68.74 $87.84 $19.54
OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) $12.99 $66.73 $70.55 $137.28 $17.44
OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE) $0.45 $0.51 $1.84 $2.35 $0.52
NET INCOME/(LOSS) $13.45 $67.24 $72.39 $139.63 $17.97

ALLOCATION BASIS:
MEMBER MONTHS - YTD 549,257 20,393 20,393 20,393 569,650
REVENUE BY LOB 83.9% 3.5% 12.6% 16.1% 100.0%

Santa Clara County Health Authority
Statement of Operations

By Line of Business (Including Allocated Expenses)
For Two Months Ending August 31, 2021
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Enrollment By Aid Category
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2020-09 2020-10 2020-11 2020-12 2021-01 2021-02 2021-03 2021-04 2021-05 2021-06 2021-07 2021-08 2021-09 FYTD var %
NON DUAL Adult (over 19) 28,269 29,181 29,835 30,327 30,750 31,307 31,711 32,106 32,577 32,997 32,995 33,281 33,546 549 1.7%
NON DUAL Child (under 19) 97,629 98,409 98,930 99,012 99,172 99,377 99,557 99,872 100,245 100,477 101,010 101,085 101,093 616 0.6%

SPD 22,079 22,149 22,169 22,245 22,350 22,308 22,281 22,290 22,291 22,301 22,363 22,276 22,331 30 0.1%
NON DUAL Adult Expansion 79,263 80,654 82,060 83,250 84,477 85,477 86,677 88,035 89,361 89,957 90,711 91,392 91,960 2,003 2.2%
NON DUAL Long Term Care 407 409 389 393 388 380 373 375 367 365 414 408 401 36 9.9%
NON DUAL Total Non-Duals 227,647 230,802 233,383 235,227 237,137 238,849 240,599 242,678 244,841 246,097 247,493 248,442 249,331 3,234 1.3%

DUAL Adult (over 21) 337 354 353 353 352 355 361 357 365 366 367 376 375 9 2.5%
SPD 23,654 23,687 23,760 23,988 23,899 24,155 24,206 24,168 24,146 24,115 23,980 24,159 24,206 91 0.4%

DUAL Long Term Care 1,256 1,237 1,208 1,182 1,115 1,074 1,054 1,038 1,031 1,060 1,127 1,115 1,092 32 3.0%
DUAL SPD OE 358 410 498 537 590 662 742 802 863 952 1,063 1,135 1,223 271 28.5%
DUAL Total Duals 25,605 25,688 25,819 26,060 25,956 26,246 26,363 26,365 26,405 26,493 26,537 26,785 26,896 403 1.5%

Total Medi-Cal 253,252 256,490 259,202 261,287 263,093 265,095 266,962 269,043 271,246 272,590 274,030 275,227 276,227 3,637 1.3%

CMC Non-Long Term Care 9,212 9,360 9,470 9,613 9,614 9,706 9,696 9,745 9,809 9,895 9,939 10,037 10,122 227 2.3%
CMC - Long Term Care 216 210 209 207 193 187 184 179 180 185 209 208 203 18 9.7%
Total CMC 9,428 9,570 9,679 9,820 9,807 9,893 9,880 9,924 9,989 10,080 10,148 10,245 10,325 245 2.4%

Total Enrollment 262,680 266,060 268,881 271,107 272,900 274,988 276,842 278,967 281,235 282,670 284,178 285,472 286,552 3,882 1.4%

SCFHP TRENDED ENROLLMENT BY COA  YTD  SEPTEMBER-2021

CMC
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SCFHP COVID-19 Summary – October 21, 2021 
 

Group Focus Area Activities and Metrics 

Members  

Statistics 

Data as of 10/21/2021 
• 6,668  members positive 
• Cumulatively 1,845 members hospitalized 
• 191 deceased (101 SNF and 90 non-SNF), representing 11% of County-reported total (total 

membership equals about 12% of the County population) 

Vaccinations 

• 9,660 members partially vaccinated; 145,671members fully vaccinated 
• Mailed flier cobranded with County Public Health Department to 8,230 non-vaccinated Medi-

Cal, non-Kaiser, members age 65+ with information about how to get vaccinated, including 
how to access transportation 

• Mailed letter to 16,900 non-vaccinated members age 16-64 with information on how to 
schedule a vaccine appointment, vaccine safety, and transportation 

• Held seven vaccine clinics, fully vaccinating a total of 872 individuals  
• Called 458 non-vaccinated members residing near the CRC to promote the COVAX clinic 
• Completed robocalls on 5/4 to 2,944 non-vaccinated CMC members to provide vaccine 

appointment contact info and offer transportation 
• Completed robocalls on 5/20 to 103,057 non-vaccinated members age 16+ to provide vaccine 

appointment contact info and offer transportation 
• Completed second robocall campaign to 11,360 members age 12-15 on 7/12 to provide 

vaccine appointment contact info and offer transportation 
• Completed outreach calls to 1,042 members age 21+ (in independent physician network), 

offering to help schedule appointments for those unvaccinated 
• Conducted outreach calls to parents and guardians of 780 members age 12 for well care visit 

reminders and sharing information on where/how to schedule COVID vaccine appointment if 
member is unvaccinated  
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Group Focus Area Activities and Metrics 

• Conducted 7,092 Quality outreach calls in August 2021 for Well Child Visits (WCV), Prenatal 
and Post-Partum Care (PPC), Controlling Blood Pressure (CBP), and Access to Care, while also 
sharing information on where/how to schedule COVID vaccine appointment, if member is 
unvaccinated 

• Submitted COVID Vaccination Response Plan on 9/1/21 to DHCS and obtained approval; 
developed workplan and meeting weekly with COVID Vaccine Workgroup to define strategy, 
tasks, and resource requirements for vaccine outreach efforts, incentives, and collaborations 

• Partnered with 5 high-traffic pharmacies to conduct outreach to 909 unvaccinated members 
age 12+ who frequent that pharmacy and/or have refills on file. Provide pharmacies with 
unvaccinated member list & supporting documents for Pharmacists to conduct outreach calls.  

o Offered $15 for each successful (or at 3 attempts) per member contact/outreach; $50 
for gap closure if member comes into the pharmacy for vaccine 

• Offered $5 gift card incentive to Customer Service staff to encourage COVID vaccine gap 
closure during inbound phone call with unvaccinated members 

• Hosted Health Fair at the CRC on 10/2/21; 38 COVID-19 vaccinations administered by the 
County's Mobile Vaccine Unit 

• Offered $50 gift card incentive to unvaccinated members age 12+ for first dose from 9/1/21 – 
3/6/22 

• Explored partnership opportunities with trusted messengers (e.g. CBOs/faith-based 
organizations/County) to effectively reach target groups with low vaccination rates 

• Prepared to outreach 591 homebound members and coordinate with County in-home COVID 
Vaccination Program to schedule appointment 

• Offered “Ask the Doctor” service at community event on 10/2/21 and 10/16/21 to answer 
questions regarding COVID and/or the vaccine  

• Recruited outreach team of 13 temps to conduct outbouund calls to unvaccinated members 
age 12+ to share information and help schedule COVID vaccine appointment, if requested by 
member 

• Createed strategy to create a COVID “one-stop shop” at the CRC; provide information, 
resources, dedicated 2 Community Health Workers, vaccine clinics  

• Expanded COVID vaccine ad campaign and social media content 
• Rolled out initiative for all Nurse Advice Line representatives to ask inbound callers about 

vaccination status; if caller is unvaccinated, notate to Nurse to talk to patient about COVID 
vaccination 
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Anthem SCC 64.7% 



Government Relations Update
October 28, 2021



• Outstanding issues
• Overall cost, economic impact
• Non-health-related provisions (child tax credit, climate/energy, etc)
• Medicare expansion
• Medicaid continuous eligibility
• Revenue provisions

• Timing complications

Federal Issues
Infrastructure reconciliation bill



• Enhanced Care Management
• Community Supports

• Housing transition navigation
• Housing deposits
• Nursing facility transition to assisted living
• Nursing facility transition to a home
• Medically-tailored meals

• Doula services – delayed to July 2022
• Community Health Worker provider type – delayed to July 2022

State Issues
New Medi-Cal Benefit Updates 



• AB 369 – presumptive eligibility for homeless individuals – vetoed 
• SB 316 – reimbursable FQHC visits – two-year bill
• SB 365 – reimbursable e-consults – vetoed 
• AB 361 – expiring Brown Act flexibilities – signed 
• SB 510 – retroactive COVID testing expenses – signed 

State Issues (cont’d)
Legislation



State Issues (cont’d)
Medi-Cal Commercial Plan Reprocurement
• DHCS stated objective: procure commercial plans to provide high quality, accessible, and cost-

effective care through established networks, emphasizing primary and preventive care
• DHCS goals

• Quality
• Access to care
• Continuum of care
• Children services
• Behavioral health services
• Coordinated/integrated care
• Reducing health disparities
• Oversight of delegated entities
• Local presence and engagement
• Emergency preparedness/essential services
• Social determinants of health
• CalAIM
• Value-based purchasing
• Administrative efficiency



State Issues (cont’d)
Medi-Cal Commercial Plan Reprocurement

• Timeline
• Final RFP release: February 2, 2022
• Proposals due: early April 2022
• Notices of Intent: mid-2022 
• Implementation date: January 1, 2024
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